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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 

This annual report on Form 10-K contains both historical and forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements 
of historical fact are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). 

Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. intends such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for 
forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and includes this statement for purposes 
of such safe harbor provisions. 

“Forward-looking” statements, as such term is defined by the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in its rules, 
regulations and releases, represent our expectations or beliefs, including, but not limited to, statements concerning our operations, 
economic performance, financial condition, our recapitalization plan, growth and acquisition strategies, investments and future 
operational plans. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,



 Impairment of our goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to have indefinite useful lives can cause our net income or 
net loss to fluctuate significantly;

 Piracy of our programming and other content, including digital and internet piracy, may decrease revenue received from 
the exploitation of our programming and other content and adversely affect our business and profitability;

 Damage to our brands or reputation;  

 Our business may be adversely affected by legal or governmental proceedings brought by or on behalf of our employees;  

 Raúl Alarcón, the Chairman of our Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and President, has majority voting control 
of our common stock and 100% voting control of our Series C preferred stock and this control may discourage or 
influence certain types of transactions or strategic initiatives;  Changes in government regulation; and 

 Other risk factors discussed under “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”.

We do not have any obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.
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PART I 

Item 1. Business 

Our Company 

All references to “we”, “us”, “our”, “SBS”, “our company” or “the Company” in this annual report on Form 10-K mean Spanish 
Broadcasting System, Inc., a Delaware corporation formed in 1994, and all entities owned or controlled by Spanish Broadcasting 
System, Inc. and, if prior to 1994, mean our predecessor parent company Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc., a New Jersey 
corporation, and its subsidiaries. Our executive offices are located at 7007 N.W. 77th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33166, our telephone 
number is (305) 441-6901, and our corporate website is www.spanishbroadcasting.com. 

We are a leading Spanish-language media and entertainment company with radio and/or television stations in the top 
U.S. Hispanic markets, including Puerto Rico. Our owned and operated radio stations serve markets representing approximately 35% 
of the U.S. Hispanic population, and our television operations serve markets representing over 3.5 million Hispanic households. We 
produce and distribute Spanish-language content, including radio programs, television shows, music and live entertainment through 
our radio stations and our television group, MegaTV, which produces over 70 hours of original programming per week. MegaTV 
broadcasts via our owned and operated stations in South Florida, Houston, and Puerto Rico and through programming and/or 
distribution agreements with other stations, as well as various cable and satellite providers. 

We operate WSKQ in New York City which is the top Spanish-language radio station in the United States based on the average 
number of listeners per quarter-hour. WSKQ delivered the highest listenership among all Spanish-language radio stations in the 
United States, according to the 2016 Hispanic Fact Pack. Our other radio stations are located in Los Angeles, New York, Puerto Rico, 
Miami, Chicago and San Francisco. In addition to our owned and operated radio stations, we operate AIRE Radio Networks, with over 
250 affiliate radio stations servicing over 75 of the top U.S. Hispanic markets, including all of the top 30 Hispanic markets.  AIRE 
Radio Networks currently covers 93% of the coveted U.S. Hispanic market and reaches over 14.0 million listeners in an average week.  

As part of our operating business, we also maintain multiple Spanish and bilingual websites that provide content related to Latin 
music, entertainment, news and culture, as well as the LaMusica mobile app.  The LaMusica mobile app is a music and entertainment 
video and audio app that programs an extensive series of short form videos, simultaneous live streams our radio stations, hundreds of 
curated playlists and has tools that enable users to personalize their mobile radio streaming experience.  The new video additions to 
our mobile app significantly enhance the audience’s engagement level and increase the reach of our mobile offering.  In addition, we 
produce live concerts and events in the United States and Puerto Rico. Concerts generate revenue from ticket sales, sponsorship and 
promotions, raise awareness of our brands in the surrounding communities and provide our advertising partners additional 
opportunities to reach their target audience. 

Our Strategy 

We focus on maximizing the revenue and profitability of our broadcast portfolio by strengthening the performance of our 
existing broadcast stations. Historically, we have evaluated strategic media acquisitions and/or dispositions and strived to expand our 
media content through distribution and affiliations in order to achieve a significant presence with clusters of stations in the top 
U.S. Hispanic markets. Historically, we have considered acquisitions and the expansion of the number of broadcast stations in markets 
where we can maximize our revenue through aggressive sales and programming efforts directed at U.S. Hispanic and general market 
advertisers. The potential acquisitions and expansion may include broadcast stations which do not currently target the U.S. Hispanic 
market, but which we believe can successfully be reformatted and programmed. From time to time, we have explored investment 
opportunities in related media outlets targeting the U.S. Hispanic market. Our acquisition and investment strategy is subject to having 
sufficient cash consistent with our recapitalization plan, which we summarize below under “—Recent Developments” and “Part II, 
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.   

Our operating strategy focuses on maximizing our broadcast stations’ appeal to our targeted audiences and advertisers in order 
to increase revenue and cash flow, while simultaneously controlling operating expenses. To achieve these goals, we focus on a number 
of key factors. 

Develop Market Leading Station Clusters in High Growth Hispanic Markets. We believe Hispanic media will gain revenue 
share as a result of the growing U.S. Hispanic population and its growing buying power. Given our knowledge of, and experience 
with, the U.S. Hispanic marketplace and our established position in the top U.S. Hispanic markets, including Puerto Rico, we will 
continue to focus on reaching and maximizing revenue in high growth Hispanic markets. We believe that operating multiple stations 
in the same markets enables us to achieve operating efficiencies and cost savings. We pursue a strategy of creating broadcast station 
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clusters that reach a critical mass of our target audience and marketing resources necessary to aggressively pursue incremental 
advertising revenue. 

Leverage Our Proprietary Content Across Our Media Platforms. We will continue to monetize our content across multiple 
platforms, including radio, broadcast and pay television and live events, as well as emerging media technologies. We use our media 
platforms and relationships with Hispanic celebrities and talent to produce unique programming and content for our television and 
radio stations. Concerts and special promotional appearances form an important part of our marketing strategy and provide us with 
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The above market opportunity information is based on data provided by the 2016 Hispanic Fact Pack, the BIA/Kelsey’s 
Investing in Television/Radio Market Report 2016 and the Selig Center for Economic Growth publication, The Multicultural 
Economy, 2016.

Our Strengths 

Strong Presence in Largest U.S. Hispanic Markets. We operate in six of the eight largest U.S. Hispanic markets: Los Angeles, 
New York, Miami, San Francisco, Chicago and Houston, as well as also operating in Puerto Rico. We operate three of the top six 
Spanish-language radio stations in the United States. Our New York station (WSKQ-FM) ranks first among Spanish-language radio 
stations in terms of highest listenership. The Los Angeles and New York markets, where we consistently have a top-three-rated 
Spanish-language radio station, have the largest and second largest U.S. Hispanic populations, respectively. New York and Los 
Angeles are also the largest and second largest overall radio markets in the United States as measured by advertising revenue. In 
addition, MegaTV serves markets representing over 3.5 million Hispanic households. 

Strong Portfolio of Branded Media Franchises. Because of our history with Hispanic-focused media, we believe that we have 
been able to develop strong relationships with the Hispanic audiences in our markets and create strong brand loyalty. Our listeners 
enjoy music from popular and emerging artists as well as updated local information on weather, news and general entertainment. Our 
live concerts and events provide our advertisers additional opportunities to reach their target audiences as well as allow us to cross-
promote our brands and diversify our revenue base. 

Diversification across Media Platforms, Geography and Customers. Our programming reaches audiences across U.S. Hispanic 
communities and across various media distribution platforms. We sell our advertising time both nationally and locally and generate 
substantially all nrij (and)Tj ( )2   (audiences)Tj y M3l250061 0 Td ( )Tj479 j (a)Tj 6.9380188  a updated markhelpow us top me0 TdTm 0 an0 Td (id5 TD (statiaing)Tj (platfo-39(c75Tcro6j -452.10501099 -11.rs)Tj ( )lyj ( )Tj (meding)Tj (cooes(an3Tj 73.8720016 (,)j ( )Tj (mednus)Tj ( )Tj  (M3 27.4900207566.3861 2)Tj 111.6our)Tj ( ) )Tj3portien123)Tj 16.9380188 d)Tj (ispanic-focusor)Tj ( )Tj (havi,)Tj ( )Tj (5%j ( 9tio55al)in)Tj 69.1499938 0 Td ( )Tj (of)Tj 10.8300170( )2  States. (nd)Tj (( )Tj (revenue)0 Td 14.12cal)76Tj 79.42900085 clud TD (communi-p6T(ge0 0 0 j -365.7130127 -11.4r)Tj ( )Tj (advertisets)Tj ( )Tj (in)Tj j (reachet9900004j ( )Tj (medred (l, ( )ws3.841hest)Tj 43.8720016tele.498998c9900055 TD (statialy)Tj ( )Tj (he)Tjhcles)Tj ( )Tj (indua)Tjj ( )Tj18j ( 0 1heTj 15.2780151Tst)Tj ( Tj (U (the)Tj 14.7169799o)Tj  )Tj (Tj 4j (and)Tj 16.938018IDiversificatirs)Tj (w)Tj ( )Tj (us)Tj56.380 014Tj 215.24401855by)Tj ( )Tj (advertising)Tj ( )Tj (AngeleTj (13eir)Tj -365.7130127 -113 0 Td ( )Tj are)Tj ( )Tj (32.76 (oue)Tj 8D (and)Tj ( )Tj)Tj 61hes.)Tj 59.976043.499cripg (Diversificatily)Tj ( )Tj (red 0 smiss (Diversificatfeej (advertising)Tj iversificatf TD ( )19cultural)Tj 319.941009ion,)TjTj ( )Tj (base.)Tj /FAAAID 10 Tf ( )Tj ET Q q31TjnTj (ona5 219.98399353 cm BT /FAAAID 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 21.336Atd 0d ( )iversificatBu( )eTj ( )Tj (acroodelj ( )Tj (omers)Tj 107.7)Tj 713)Tj 16.FAAAAH 10 Tf (.)Tj /FAAABA 10 Tf 20j (ter9e)Tj 54.4089965ate str1 0gi055 TD (statialy)Tj ( )Tj (s)Tj ( )Tj (allto)T55 TD (statinrij (and)Tj capit)Tj ( 16 (de 0 6l)Tj 31.92398071xpens)Tur TD (communiteneen)Tj ( )Tj (alow)Tj ( )Tj (us)Tj ( )Tj and 
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Recent Developments 

Recapitalization

We are working with a team of financial and legal advisors in evaluating all options available to us in executing on a 
comprehensive recapitalization plan. These options include, but are not limited to, selling certain non-core assets (whose net proceeds 
would be used to repay a portion of outstanding Notes) as summarized above under “—Our Strategy—Sell Non-Core Assets and 
Recapitalization Plan,” new financings (including debt, equity-linked securities and equity offerings), an exchange offer 
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Puerto Rico. In 2015, the Puerto Rico market was the thirty-first largest U.S. radio market in terms of advertising revenue.  In 
2016, advertising revenues were projected to be approximately $75.8 million. The Puerto Rico market experienced an annual radio 
revenue increase of 0.5% between 2014 and 2015 and is expected to increase at an annual rate of 0.3% between 2015 and 2020. 

Owned and Operated Radio Station Programming 

We format the programming of each of our radio stations to target a substantial share of the U.S. Hispanic audience in its 
respective market. The U.S. Hispanic population is diverse, consisting of numerous identifiable groups from many different countries 
of origin and each with its own musical and cultural heritage. The music, culture, customs and Spanish dialects vary from one radio 
market to another. We strive to become very familiar with the musical tastes and preferences of each of the various Hispanic ethnic  of

of 
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Television Station Portfolio 

The following is a general description of each of our markets. The market revenue information is based on data provided by 
BIA/Kelsey’s Investing in Television 2016, 4th edition. 

Houston. In 2015, the Houston market was the fifth largest U.S. television market in terms of advertising revenue.  In 2016, 
advertising revenues were projected to be approximately $554.0 million. The Houston market experienced an annual television 
revenue increase of 3.0% between 2014 and 2015. Television revenue in the Houston market is expected to increase at an annual rate 
of 3.7% between 2015 and 2020. 

Miami. In 2015, the Miami-Ft. Lauderdale market was the sixth largest U.S. television market in terms of advertising revenue.  
In 
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Television Strategy 

Mega TV’s programming is based on a strategy designed to showcase a combination of programs, ranging from televised radio-
branded shows to general entertainment programs, such as music, celebrity, debate, interviews and personality-based shows. On the 
forefront of digital platforms, we were the first Spanish-language programmer to broadcast in 100% native High Definition (HD) in 
the United States and one of the first Spanish-language programmers in the United States to launch content on Video On Demand, 
known as VOD. 

As part of our strategy, we have incorporated certain of our radio on-air personalities into our television programming, as well 
as including interactive elements to complement our Internet websites. We produce over 70 hours of original programming per week. 
Our television 
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Advertising Revenue 

The vast majority of our revenue is derived from cash advertising sales. Advertising revenue has historically been classified into 
three categories – “national”, “network” and” local”.  “National” generally refers to advertising that is solicited by a representative 
firm for advertisers out of the Designated Market Area (DMA).  Our national sales representative for our radio stations is McGavern 
Guild Media,LLC.   “Network” advertising revenue is advertising revenue sold to network advertisers expecting to reach 70% plus of 
the U.S. national radio audience in a specific demographic group. The network advertising buys are sold by our AIRE Radio Networks 
group.  “Local” refers to advertising purchased by advertisers and agencies in the local market served by a particular station. 

Current trends in the media advertising
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Several of the broadcast stations with which we compete are subsidiaries of larger national or regional companies that have 
substantially greater financial resources than we do and may not be undergoing a recapitalization strategy, such as the one we are 
pursuing. Factors which are material to our competitive position include:

 management experience; 

 talent and popularity of on-air personalities and television show hosts and actors; 

 audience ratings, impressions, and our broadcast stations’ rank in their markets; 

 sales talent and experience; 

 signal strength and frequency; and 

 audience demographics, including the nature of the Spanish-language market targeted by a particular station. 

Although the broadcast industry is highly competitive, some barriers to entry do exist. These barriers can be mitigated to some 
extent by changing existing broadcast station formats and programming and upgrading power, among other actions. The operation of a 
broadcast station requires a license or other authorization from the FCC. The number of AM radio stations that can operate in a given 
market is limited by the availability of AM radio spectrum in the market. The number of FM radio stations and television stations that 
can operate in a given market is limited by the availability of those frequencies allotted by the FCC to communities in such market. In 
addition, the FCC’s multiple ownership rules regulate the number of stations that may be owned and controlled by a single entity in a 
given market. For a discussion of FCC regulation, see “Federal Regulation of Radio and Television Broadcasting” below. 

The radio industry is also subject to competition from new media technologies that are being developed or introduced, such as 
the delivery of audio programming by satellite, cable television systems and Internet-based music streaming services. Some radio 
broadcast stations, including ours, are utilizing digital technology on their existing terrestrial frequencies to deliver audio 
programming. The FCC also has begun granting licenses for a new “low power” radio or “microbroadcasting” service to provide low-
cost noncommercial neighborhood service on frequencies which would not interfere with existing stations. 

The FCC has authorized HD Radio ® technology which permits a station to transmit radio programming in digital formats using 
the bandwidth that the radio station is currently licensed to use.  HD Radio ® technology is used to (1) improve sound quality, 
(2) provide spectrum for enhanced data services and multiple program streams and (3) allow radio stations to time broker unused 
digital bandwidth to third parties, thereby providing new business opportunities for radio broadcasters. We currently utilize HD Radio 
® digital technology on some of our stations and will evaluate additional installations over the next few years. 

The delivery of information through the presently minimally regulated Internet has also created a new form of competition for 
both radio and television. Internet broadcasts have no geographic limitations and can provide listeners with programming from around 
the country and the world. We expect that improvements from higher bandwidths, faster download speeds and wider programming 
selection may make Internet radio a more significant competitor in the future. The radio broadcasting industry historically has grown 
despite the introduction of new technologies for the delivery of entertainment and information, such as television broadcasting, cable 
television, audio tapes, compact discs and portable digital music players. 

Recent developments by many companies, including Internet service providers, are expanding the variety and quality of 
broadcast content on the internet. Internet companies have developed business relationships with companies that have traditionally 
provided syndicated programming, network television and other content. As a result, additional programming is becoming available 
through nontraditional methods, which can directly impact the number of TV viewers and thus indirectly impact station rankings, 
popularity and revenue possibilities from our stations. Like radio, the television broadcasting industry has grown, notwithstanding the 
increasing popularity of entertainment and media content delivered through personal computers, smartphones, tablets and other 
portable wireless devices. We cannot assure you, however, that the development or introduction of any new media technology will not 
have an adverse effect on the radio and television broadcasting industries. 

We cannot predict what other matters may be considered in the future by the FCC, nor can we assess in advance what impact, if 
any, the implementation of any of these proposals or changes may have on our business. See “Federal Regulation of Radio and 
Television Broadcasting” below. 
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Trademarks, Copyrights and Licenses 

In the course of our business, we use various trademarks, copyrights, trade names, domain names and service marks, including 
logos, with our products and services in our programming, advertising and promotions. Trademarks and copyrights are of material 
importance to our business and are protected by registration or otherwise in the United States, including Puerto Rico. We believe our 
trademarks, copyrights, trade names, domain names and service marks are important to our business, and we intend to continue to 
protect and promote them where appropriate and to protect the registration of new trademarks and copyrights, including through legal 
action. We do not hold or depend upon any material government license, franchise or concession, except that we hold and depend 
upon the broadcast licenses granted by the FCC and hold certain trademarks granted by the United States Patent and Trademark 
Office. 

Environmental Matters 

As the owner, lessee or operator of various real properties and facilities, we are subject to various federal, state and local 
environmental laws and regulations. Historically, compliance with these laws and regulations has not had a material adverse effect on 
our business. We cannot assure you; however, that compliance with existing or new environmental laws and regulations will not 
require us to make significant expenditures of funds. 

Employees 

As of December 31, 2016, we had 386 full-time employees and 98 part-time employees.  In July 2016, SAG-AFTRA was 
certified as the exclusive bargaining agent solely for 31 on-air talent employees of our Los Angeles-based stations KXOL and KLAX.  
We have been negotiating with representatives of SAG-AFTRA for an initial collective bargaining agreement which would cover 
those 31 employees.  To date, we have not yet reached an agreement with SAG-AFTRA, and at this juncture, it is too early to state 
with certainty whether the parties will ever enter 
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Federal Regulation of Radio and 
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The following table sets forth the technical information and license expiration dates of each of our radio and television stations: 
 

      Date of               
    Date of  license    Operation  FCC         

Broadcast station  Market  acquisition  expiration    frequency  class  HAAT   Power  
              (In meters)   (In kilowatts)  

KLAX-FM  Los Angeles, CA  2/24/1988  12/1/2021    97.9 MHz  B   184   33 
KXOL-FM  Los Angeles, CA  10/30/2003  12/1/2021    96.3 MHz  B   398   7 
WSKQ-FM  New York, NY  1/26/1989  6/1/2022  (1) 97.9 MHz  B   415   

 

 New York, NY     h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAl h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 334.1499939 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.20000076 -1 l 51.20000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 4.44899988 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (97.9)Tj ( )Tj (MHz)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 384.350MHzBB
CA

 398 
 

 

7  

 

 New York, NY    (1 
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serve the public interest, convenience and necessity, the FCC will hold an evidentiary hearing on the application. If, as a result of an 
evidentiary hearing, the FCC determines that the licensee has failed to meet the requirements specified above and that no mitigating 
factors justify the imposition of a lesser sanction, then the FCC may deny a license renewal application. Generally, our licenses have 
been renewed without any material conditions or sanctions being imposed, but we cannot assure you that the licenses of each of our 
stations will continue to be renewed or will continue to be renewed without conditions or sanctions. 

Transfers and Assignments of License 

The Communications Act requires prior approval by the FCC for the assignment of a broadcast license or the transfer of control 
of a corporation or other 
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The FCC currently treats limited liability companies like limited partnerships for purposes of attribution. Stock interests held by 
insurance companies, mutual funds, bank trust departments and certain other passive investors that hold stock for investment purposes 
only become attributable with the ownership of 20% or more of the voting stock of the corporation holding broadcast licenses. 

To assess whether a voting stock interest in a direct or an indirect parent corporation of a broadcast licensee is attributable, the 
FCC uses a “multiplier” analysis in which noncontrolling voting stock interests are deemed proportionally reduced at each 
noncontrolling link in a multi-corporation ownership chain. A time brokerage agreement with another radio or television station in the 
same market creates an attributable interest in the brokered radio or television station, as well as for purposes of the FCC’s local radio 
and television station ownership rules, if the agreement affects more than 15% of the brokered radio or television station’s weekly 
broadcast hours. Similarly, a radio station licensee’s right under a joint sales agreement (JSA) to sell more than 15% per week of the 
advertising time on another radio station in the same market constitutes an attributable ownership interest in such station for purposes 
of the FCC’s ownership rules.  In addition, the FCC adopted an Order in March 2014 that makes a television station licensee’s right 
under a JSA to sell more than 15% per week of the advertising time on another television station in the same market an attributable 
interest.  An appeal of this Order is pending in Federal circuit court. We are not currently a party to any JSAs, so the FCC’s Order 
does not affect us at this time.

Debt instruments, nonvoting stock, stock options or other nonvoting interests with rights of conversion to voting interests that 
have not yet been exercised, insulated limited partnership interests where the limited partner is not materially involved in the media-
related activities of the partnership, and minority voting stock interests in corporations where there is a single holder of more than 50% 
of the outstanding voting stock whose vote is sufficient to affirmatively direct the affairs of the corporation generally do not subject 
their holders to attribution, unless such interests implicate the FCC’s equity-debt-plus (or “EDP”) rule. Under the EDP rule, a major 
programmly their Tj 27.500arke-(an)Tj ( )Tj (att95989 ( )Tj (att147mpanies)Tj 133wie)Tj ( )Tj (tot)Tj 34.154998ributable in a direct in the advertising831d mi7 0 Td ( )Tj (station)Tj ( )Tj rke-(an)Tj ( )5( )T102173.65997314 -11. (  ( )Tj32 (programmly)Tj ( 95989 ( )Tj (att147mpanies)Tj 133al)Tj ( )Tj (FC (to)Tj ( )Tj (“dstrumen112)TjTj )Tjstanding)Tj 49 0 Td ( )Tj the pa  ( )Tj (majo.5189817o4s0)bnon ( )Tj (majo)Tj ( )Tj (same)Tj ( ( )Tj(a)Tj ( )Tj (tele (in)Tj ( )2 )Tj (v329)Tj 14.7169799808 0 Td( )9j (0rokerage)Tj 42. 0 Td ( )Tj (a)Tj 6.9380188 0g(an)TTj ( )Tj (EDP)ributable)Tj 33j ( )Tj (the)Tj ( 81.63j (voting)Tj ( )Tj ting)Tj 119.140aluj ( )Tj (the)Tj ( )Tj (voting)Tj 119.1459899902 0 TdTj (attritcuit)Tj 114.6dstrumen140.70055 TD Tj ( )Tj (weeor)Tj ( )Tj (“)Tj ( r)Tj ( )Tj 1.49908Tj 341 (of)Tj ( )Tj (theFposes)Tj ( )Tj (of)Tj ( )51.9Tj (ofless)Tj 27.500 0 Td ( )Tj (t8ime)Tj ( )Tj (2 )Tj (38Tj 6.93898 0 Td 2)TTj (15%)Tj 20.830009le,
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To apply these tiers, the FCC currently relies on Nielsen Metro Survey Areas, where they exist. In other areas, the FCC relies on 
an interim contour-overlap methodology. For radio stations located outside Nielsen® Metro Survey Areas, the FCC is undertaking a 
rulemaking to determine how to define such local radio markets. The market definition used by the FCC in applying its ownership 
rules may not be the same as that used for purposes of the HSR Act. 

Local Television Ownership 

Under the ownership rules currently in place, the FCC generally permits an owner to have only one television station per 
market. A single owner is permitted to have two stations with overlapping signals only if (i) one of the two commonly owned stations 
is not ranked in the top four based upon audience share, and (ii) there will remain after the transaction eight independently owned, full 
power noncommercial or commercial operating television stations in the market. The rules also permit the ownership, operation or 
control of two television stations in a market as long as the stations’ Noise Limited Service contours do not overlap. The FCC will 
consider waiving these ownership restrictions in certain cases involving failing or failed stations or stations which are not yet built. 
The FCC also grants satellite waivers when one or more television stations operate as satellites of another station.  We currently 
operate WTCV as a parent station and WVEO and WVOZ-TV as satellite stations in the Puerto Rico designated market area 
pursuant to a satellite waiver. Under the rule, the licensee of a television station that provides more than 15% of another in-market 
station’s weekly programming will be deemed to have an attributable interest in the other station.  Based on an Order adopted by the 
FCC in March 2014, a television station that is a party to a Joint sales Agreement (‘JSA”) to which it sells more than 15% of the 
advertising time of another television station in the same market will be deemed to have an attributable interest in the station for which 
it sells advertising time.  This ruling became effective on June 19, 2014.  Parties to JSA agreements in effect as of June 19, 2014 that 
do not comply with the FCC’s Local Television Ownership Rule were given two years to bring the JSA into compliance, seek a 
waiver or eliminate the JSA. Congressional action extended this deadline to October 1, 2025. We are not currently a party to any 
JSAs, so the FCC’s Order does not affect us at this time.

Television National Audience Reach Limitation 

Under the Communications Act, one party may not own TV stations which collectively reach more than 39% of all U.S. TV 
households. For purposes of calculating the total number of TV households reached by a station, the FCC previously applied a “UHF 
discount” pursuant to which a UHF TV station was attributed with only 50% of the TV households in its market.  In September 2016 
the FCC eliminated the UHF discount.  The FCC provided limited grandfathering for TV station owners that exceed the 39% cap 
without the UHF discount.  Grandfathering will expire if combinations are assigned or transferred to a third party.  A joint petition for 
reconsideration has been filed at the FCC of the decision and comments were due in December 2016.  Other parties have filed for 
judicial review. 

Radio-Television Cross-Ownership 

The radio-television cross-ownership rule generally allows common ownership of one or two television stations and up to six 
radio stations, or, in certain circumstances, (i) one television station and seven radio stations, in any market where at least 20 
independent voices would remain after the combination; (ii) two television stations and up to four radio stations in a market where at 
least 10 independent voices would remain after the combination; and (iii) one television and one radio station notwithstanding the 
number of independent voices in the market. A “voice” includes each independently owned and operated full-power television and 
radio station and each daily newspaper that has a circulation exceeding 5% of the households in the market, plus one voice for all 
cable television systems operating in the market. 

Newspaper-Broadcast Cross-Ownership 

Under the currently effective newspaper broadcast cross-ownership rule, unless grandfathered or subject to waiver, no party can 
have an attributable interest in both a daily English-language newspaper and either a television or radio station in the same market if 
specified signal contours of the television station or the radio station encompass the entire community in which the newspaper is 
published. The FCC’s recent Quadrennial Review Order adopted a waiver standard that would permit a combination if a proponent 
demonstrates that either the newspaper or broadcast station is failed or failing based on specific criteria the FCC has identified.  The 
FCC will also consider waivers on a case-by-case basis if the proponent demonstrates that the proposed combination will not unduly 
harm viewpoint diversity in the market. 
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and are currently broadcasting solely on their digital channels. Our full-power television station in Houston also broadcasts several 
additional video streams. Under current FCC rules, when “must carry” rights apply, cable systems and DBS operators are required to 
carry only one channel of the digital signal of our television stations, despite the capability of digital broadcasters to broadcast 
mult0y of 
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 changes to the FCC’s equal employment opportunity regulations and other matters relating to the involvement of minorities and 
women in the broadcasting industry; 

 changes to rules relating to political broadcasting including proposals to grant free air time to candidates, and other changes 
regarding political and nonpolitical program content, funding, political advertising rates, and sponsorship disclosures; 

 proposals to restrict or prohibit the advertising of beer, wine and other alcoholic beverages; 

 proposals to restrict or prohibit the advertising of on-line casinos or on-line sports-betting services; 

 proposals regarding the regulation of the broadcast of indecent or violent content; 
 proposals to require broadcast stations to operate studios in the communities to which they are licensed, which would require 

construction of new studios, to provide staffing on a 24 hour per day basis, and to increase and/or quantify locally oriented 
program content and diversity; 

 technical and frequency allocation matters, including increased protection of low power FM stations from interference by full-
service stations and changes to the method used to allot FM radio frequencies; changes in broadcast, multiple ownership, foreign 
ownership, cross-ownership and ownership attribution policies; 

 proposals to alter provisions of the tax laws affecting broadcast operations and acquisitions; 

 proposals to regulate or prohibit payments to stations by independent record promoters, record labels and others for the 
inclusion of specific content in broadcast programming; 

 proposals to impose spectrum use fees or other fees on FCC licensees;

 changes to allow satellite radio operators to insert local content into their programming service; 

 service and technical rules for digital radio, including possible additional public interest requirements for terrestrial digital audio 
broadcasters; and 

 proposals to require radio broadcasters to pay royalties to musicians and record labels for the performance of music played on 
the stations. 

Available Information 
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The following information should be read in conjunction with Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial 
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These restrictions could have a material adverse effect on our ability to refinance the Notes and our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. 

The Voting Rights Triggering Event continues until (i) all dividends in arrears shall have been paid in full and (ii) all other 
failures, breaches or defaults giving rise to such Voting Rights Triggering Event are remedied or waived by the holders of at least a 
majority of the shares of the then outstanding Series B preferred stock. We do not currently have sufficient funds legally available to 
be able to satisfy the conditions for terminating the Voting Rights Triggering Event. 

In addition, we face the risk of litigation with the holders of our Series B preferred stock, for example, if they seek to block our 
refinancing of the Notes. If we are involved in this kind of litigation, we will likely incur significant legal costs in defending any such 
claim.

The failure to repay our Notes and our obligations under our Series B preferred stock adversely affects our financial condition and 
raises substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. 

Our consolidated debt is substantial and we are highly leveraged, which adversely affects our financial condition and limits our 
ability to grow and compete. In addition, the existence of the Voting Rights Triggering Event hampers our operations, and may give 
the Series B preferred stockholders a basis to block our ability to refinance the Notes. These factors, as well as the risks summarized in 
the two preceding risk factors, are considerations that lead to our conclusion that, as an accounting matter, there is substantial doubt 
about our ability to continue as a going concern.  

Upon a change of control, we must offer to repurchase all of the Notes and our Series B preferred stock. 

The terms of our Notes and Series B preferred stock require us, in the event of a change of control, to offer to repurchase all or a 
portion of a holder’s (i) Notes at an offer price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid dividends to but 
excluding the purchase date and (ii) shares at an offer price in cash equal to 101% of the liquidation preference of the shares, plus an 
amount in cash equal to all accumulated and unpaid dividends on those shares up to but excluding the date of repurchase. We do not 
currently have cash to purchase the Notes or the Series B preferred stock and we will not likely have in the future sufficient funds 
legally available to make Series B preferred stock purchases. If we are required to purchase Notes in a change of control purchase 
offer and we do not do so, then we would be in default under the indenture, which could lead, after a 30 day grace period, to an event 
of default under the Indenture and then the right of Noteholders to exercise various remedies against us, including a foreclosure on our 
assets that constitutes collateral for the Notes.   

We have not generated sufficient cash to repay our Notes and our liabilities under our Series B preferred stock, and we may be 
forced to take other actions to satisfy our obligations under our Notes and Series B preferred stock, which may not be successful. 

Our cash flows, capital resources and cash raised from asset sales were insufficient to repay our Notes at their maturity and 
satisfy our obligations under our Series B preferred stock. As a result, we will need to refinance the Notes or seek their repayment 
from a combination of sources, which will occur after their maturity if we are successful in doing so. One consequence of this is that 
we have been forced to reduce or delay investments, acquisitions, the growth of our business generally and capital expenditures and 
will continue to be in that position until we address the Notes’ maturity. We are also seeking to sell non-core assets. We face various 
risks relating to our attempt to sell these assets, including whether we will be able to effect any such sales on attractive terms or at all, 
the timing of any such sales, their impact on our cash flow and the risks of receiving FCC 
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from our subsidiaries. While the indenture that governs the Notes limits the ability of our subsidiaries to incur consensual restrictions 
on their ability to pay dividends or make other intercompany payments to us, these limitations are subject to qualifications and 
exceptions. In the event that we do not receive distributions from our subsidiaries, we may be unable to make required repayment of 
the Notes. 

Our inability to generate sufficient cash flows or sell assets to repay our Notes, or to refinance our Notes and satisfy our 
obligations under the Series B preferred stock on commercially reasonable terms or at all, would materially and adversely affect our 
financial condition and results of operations. 

We are highly leveraged and our substantial level of indebtedness adversely affects our financial condition and prevents us from 
fulfilling our financial obligations.

As of December 31, 2016, we had $279.6 million of total debt outstanding which does not include the $155.8 million 
outstanding under the Series B preferred stock (comprised of approximately $90.5 million in liquidation preference and $65.3 million 
in accrued dividends). Such amount outstanding under our Series B preferred stock is accounted for as a liability under GAAP. Our 
high indebtedness has had and will continue to have significant effect on our business. Our indebtedness, the terms of the Indenture 
and the existence of a Voting Rights Triggering Event have had and will continue to have several negative effects on us and creates 
several risks, including the following:

 we did not repay the Notes at their maturity, as a result of which there was an event of default under the Indenture; 

 requires us to use a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to pay interest at a rate of 12.5% per year and principal 
on our Notes, which reduces the funds available for the implementation of our strategy, particularly regarding acquisitions and 
investments and more generally for working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes; 

 limits our ability to obtain additional financing for acquisitions and investments, working capital, capital expenditures, or 
general corporate purposes, which may limit the ability to execute our business strategy; 

 prevents us from raising the funds necessary to repurchase Notes tendered to us if there is a change of control or other event 
requiring such a repurchase, and any failure to repurchase Notes tendered for repurchase would constitute a default under the 
Indenture; 

 heightens our vulnerability to downturns in our business, our industry or in the general economy and restrict us from exploiting 
business opportunities or making acquisitions; 

 places us at a competitive disadvantage compared to those of our competitors that may have proportionately less debt and are 
not facing an impending debt maturity as we are; 

 limits management’s discretion in operating our business; and

 limits our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business, the industry in which we operate or the general 
economy; and 

Each of these factors may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We do 
not currently have sufficient cash on hand and we do not expect to generate sufficient cash from operations or the sale of assets or as a 
result of the Broadcast Incentive Auction to pay the Notes at maturity. See “—Failure to repay our Notes”.

The terms of the Indenture and the Certificate of Designations for the Series B preferred stock restrict our current and future 
operations. 

The terms of the Indenture and the Certificate of Designations for the Series B preferred stock contain restrictive covenants that 
impose significant restrictions on us and may limit, or thq( )Tj (signif)Tj o00956Series  r0055(economy)Tj ( )Tngcomparedrestrict  B19long- (ofit,)Tj ( )Tbmncentive cstric6Series 
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 enter into sale and leaseback transactions; 

 alter the businesses we conduct; 

 enter into agreements restricting our subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends, make loans and sell assets to the Company and other 
restricted subsidiaries; 

 enter into change of control transactions;

 manage our FCC licenses and broadcast license subsidiaries; and

 consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of our assets. 

As a result of these restrictions, we are: 

 limited in how we conduct our business; 

 unable to satisfy our current obligations; 

 unable to raise additional debt or equity financing; or 

 unable to compete effectively or to take advantage of new business 
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A large portion of our net revenue and operating income currently comes from our New York, 
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The success of our radio stations depends on the popularity and appeal of our content, which is difficult to predict. 

We format the programming of each of our radio stations to capture a substantial share of the U.S. Hispanic audience in their raespectiv imarkets
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streaming and downloading, and place-shifting of content from the home to portable devices on which content is viewable outside the 
home. For example, devices that allow users to view or listen to television or 





33

We cannot assure you that Mr. Alarcón will maintain all or any portion of his ownership or that he would continue as an officer 
or director if he sells a significant part of his stock. Further, the disposition by Mr. Alarcón 
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restrictions or reductions in rates on political advertising may adversely affect our advertising revenues. The FCC has initiated a 
proceeding to examine and potentially regulate more closely embedded advertising, such as product placement and product 
integration. Enhanced restrictions affecting these means of delivering advertising messages may adversely affect our advertising 
revenues. The FCC is currently engaged in a review of its media ownership rules. Changes to the media ownership and other FCC 
rules may affect the competitive landscape in ways that could increase the competition faced by us. We are unable to predict the effect 
that any such laws, regulations or policies may have on our operations. 

Proposed legislation would require radio broadcasters to pay royalties to record labels and recording artists. 

Legislation has been previously introduced in Congress that would require radio broadcasters to pay a royalty to record labels 
and performing artists for use of their recorded songs. Thus far, the legislation has failed to pass, but it may be reintroduced in the 
future. Currently, we pay royalties to song composers and publishers through Broadcast Music, Inc., the American Society of 
Composers, Authors and Publishers and SESAC, Inc. The proposed legislation would add an additional layer of royalties to be paid 
directly to the record labels and artists. In addition, radio and recording industry representatives have entered into negotiations in the 
past that could result in an agreement to resolve the performance fee issue. It is currently 
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Our businesses depend upon licenses issued by the FCC, and if any of those licenses were not renewed or we were to be out of 
compliance with FCC regulations and policies, our business may be materially impaired. 

Our businesses depend upon maintaining their broadcasting licenses issued by the FCC, which are issued currently for a 
maximum term of eight years and are subject to renewal thereafter. Interested parties may challenge a renewal application. On rare 
occasions, the FCC has revoked licenses, not renewed them, or renewed them with significant qualifications, including renewals for 
less than a full term of eight years. In the past, a few of our stations have operated on expired licenses while their applications for 
renewal remain pending. We cannot be certain that our
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Item 2. Properties 

Each of our media segments requires offices, broadcasting studios, and transmission facilities 
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures 

None. 

PART II 

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

(a) Market Information 

During 2015 and 2016, Class A common stock traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “SBSA”. On January 
19, 2017, our Class A common stock was suspended from trading on the NASDAQ Global Market, pending delisting, and began 
trading on the OTCQX® Best Market (U.S. Tier).  The tables below show, for the quarters indicated, the reported high and low bid 
quotes for our Class A common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market. 
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least a majority of the shares of the then outstanding Series B preferred stock. We do not currently have sufficient funds legally 
available to be able to satisfy the conditions for terminating the Voting Rights Triggering Event. The Indenture governing our Notes 
currently prohibits us from paying dividends or from repurchasing the Series B preferred stock. 

See Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors of this annual report on Form 10-K for a further discussion of our Series B preferred stock, 
including the consequences of the occurrence of the Voting Rights Triggering Event. 

See Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Liquidity and 
Capital Resources below for additional information regarding liquidity restrictions on our ability to pay dividends on our common 
stock. 

(d) Equity Compensation Plans and Other Equity Compensation

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2016, the number of securities outstanding under our equity compensation 
plans, the weighted-average exercise price of such securities and the number of securities available for grant under these plans: 

  Number of Shares          
  to be Issued   Weighted-Average   Number of Securities  
  Upon   Exercise   Remaining Available  
  Exercise of   Price of   for Future Issuance  
  Outstanding   Outstanding   Under Equity  
  Options,   Options,   Compensation Plans  
  Warrants   Warrants   (excluding  
Category  and Rights   and Rights   Column (a))  
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
   Stockholders:             

2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan   295,000  $ 3.62   — 
1999 StockPlan 
 

 

295,000

 

 $3.62 

  

1999 StockPlan2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan

 295,000
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We own and operate radio stations located in six of the eight most populous Hispanic markets in the United States: Los Angeles, 
New York, Puerto Rico, Chicago, Miami and San Francisco. The Los Angeles and New York markets have the largest and second 
largest Hispanic populations and are also the largest and second largest radio markets in the United States measured by advertising 
revenue, respectively. We format the programming of each of our radio stations to capture a substantial share of the Hispanic audience in 
their respective markets. The U.S. Hispanic population is diverse, consisting of numerous identifiable ethnic groups from many 
different countriess6rp 4.8999 is88 (Angeles,)Tj origaln67832184 0 Tw448id ( )Tj u85939 0 Td (e)Tj 4.131 p0 Td ( )Tj . 5

http://www.lamusica.com/
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Our net revenue is generally determined by the advertising rates that we are able to charge and the number of advertisements 
that we can broadcast without jeopardizing listenership/viewership levels. Each station broadcasts a predetermined number of 
advertisements per hour with the actual number depending upon the format of a particular station and any programming strategy we 
are utilizing to attract an audience. The number of advertisements we decide to broadcast hour 
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 Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses are related to the costs of selling our 
programming content and administrative costs associated with operating and managing our stations. These expenses include 
compensation and benefits for employees involved in selling and administrative functions, commissions, rating services, 
advertising, barter expenses, facilities expenses, special events expenses, professional fees, insurance, allowance for doubtful 
accounts, affiliate station compensation and other expenses. 

 Corporate expenses. Corporate expenses are related to the operations of our corporate offices and matters. These expenses 
include compensation and benefits for our corporate employees, professional fees, insurance, corporate facilities expenses and 
other expenses. 

We strive to control our operating expenses by centralizing certain functions at our corporate offices and consolidating certain 
functions in each of our market clusters. In our pursuit to control our operating expenses, we work closely with our local station 
management and vendors. 

Year Ended 2016 Compared to Year Ended 2015 

The following summary table presents separate financial data for each of our operating segments (in thousands). 
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The following summary table presents a comparison of our operating results of operations for the years ended December 31, 
2016 and 2015. Various fluctuations illustrated in the table are discussed below. This section should be read in conjunction with our 
consolidated financial statements and related notes. 
 
 Year Ended  
 December 31,  
 2016   2015  
Net revenue $ 144,619   146,899 
Engineering and programming expenses  31,112   30,761 
Selling, general and administrative expenses  56,106   66,574 
Corporate expenses  10,588   10,462 
Depreciation and amortization  4,692   4,802 
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets, net of disposal costs  (11)   (87)
Impairment charges and restructuring costs  (37)   536 

Operating income $ 42,169   33,851 
Interest expense, net  (40,149)   (39,847)
Dividends on Series B preferred stock classified as interest expense  (9,734)   (9,734)
Income tax expense  8,628   11,225 
Net loss $ (16,342)   (26,955)

Net Revenue 

The decrease in our consolidated net revenues of $2.3 million or 2% was due to decreases in our radio segment offset by 
increases in our television segment net revenues. Our television segment net revenues increased $1.8 million or 14%, due to the 
increases in local, national, and barter sales offset by decreases in digital sales and special events revenues.  Our radio segment net 
revenues decreased $4.1 million or 3%, due to decreases in network and national sales, and special events revenues, which were offset 
by increases in local and digital sales and product endorsements.  Our special events revenue decrease occurred primarily in our Los 
Angeles, Miami, New York, and Puerto Rico markets.  

Engineering and Programming Expenses 

The increase in our consolidated engineering and programming expenses of $0.4 million or 1% was due to the increase in our 
radio segment offset by decreases in our television segment’s expenses. Our radio segment expenses increased $0.4 million or 2%, 
mainly due to an increase in content production and technical costs associated with the new LaMusica App which offset by decreases 
in compensation and benefits, and talent fees.  Our television segment expenses decreased less than $0.1 million or less than 1%, 
primarily due to an increase in production tax credits which offset originally produced content production costs in Puerto Rico.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses 

The decrease in our consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses of $10.5 million or 16% was due to decreased 
expenses in our radio segmentor ( )Tj (or)t16entp025 l 97entp025 l 9je  generaaTj 8500061 12.2489a44 Tm5 l 97entp025120.2539978 0 TD ( )Tj (e1904)Tj (due)Tj ( )Tj (to)Tjj ( )Tj (decreases)Tj ( j (increase)Tj ( )Tj (in)Tj ( )T.9485iam734)Tj (due)Tj ()Tjand the or ( )Tj (or)t16entps than11ateorat3 ( )Tj (in)Tj 00952 -11.4990 or lbonus 0 27.39Tj -d (7( )Tj (due)Tj (s)Tmis8 0  27.353( )rod195000916 0 Td (ues.)T)Tj ( )Tj (less)Tj ( )Tj (0 0 1 0 1 cm BT /servicnt)Tj(dec8 TD7400342 0 Td ( )Tj (incre.TD ( )T9980295)Tj 51.39200592 0 Td ( )Tj (or)Tj ( )Tj (3%,)Tj ( )Tj ( ( )Tj-299874(t858inally)Tj ( )Tj (pr )Tj (to)Tj ( )Tj (an)Tj 76.36Q q 2rat36th)Tj ( )Tj ( l 97entp025  )Tew)T9384due by  content theinwhich selling-5j (6259765)Tj (radio)Tj ( )Tjmitigcm BT /FAAABA rel0 Td ( )Tj (to)(anosur l h W n q 1  ET788002001229 0 05 l 6)Tj 45.82498169 (or)t16entps than025W n q2egment App yeax fax j (and)Tj ( )Tj mon2000122 ( )Tj (product)Tj ( )received( )Tj (due)21 115.2%
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Impairment Charges and Restructuring Costs 

The decrease in impairment charges of $0.6 million or 107% was primarily due to the recognition of an impairment of an FCC 
broadcasting license in our San Francisco market in the prior year.

Operating Income 

The increase in operating income of $8.3 million or 25% was mainly due to the decrease in selling, general and administrative 
expenses offset by the decrease in net revenue.

Dividends on Series B preferred stock classified as interest expense 

As of December 31, 2016, we accounted for the Series B preferred stock as a current liability and the accrued dividends as 
interest expense. Prior to October 15, 2013, the Series B preferred stock was considered “conditionally redeemable” because the 
redemption of the shares of Series B preferred stock was contingent on the Series B preferred stockholders requesting that their Series 
B preferred stock be repurchased on October 15, 2013.  On October 15, 2013, almost all of the holders of the Series B preferred stock 
requested that we repurchase their shares of Series B preferred stock pursuant to the Certificate of Designations for the Series B 
preferred stock.  As a result of their request, we assessed and determined that, under applicable accounting principles, the contingency 
had occurred, and the Series B preferred stock now met the definition of a “mandatorily redeemable” instrument under Accounting 
Standards Codification 480 “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity” (“ASC 480”).  Under ASC 480, if an instrument qualifies as 
being “mandatorily redeemable,” then the financial instrument should be classified as a liability.  

In addition, the Series B preferred stock is measured at each reporting date as the amount of cash that would be paid pursuant to 
the Certificate of Designations, had settlement occurred on the reporting date, recognizing the resulting change in that amount from 
the previous reporting date as interest expense. Therefore, the accruing of quarterly dividends of the Series B preferred stock was and 
will continue to be recorded as an interest expense.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense 

The decrease in income tax expense of 
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 We had a working capital deficit of $392.1 million, primarily due to the classification of our Notes and Series B preferred stock 
as current liabilities.

In addition, our inability to repay the Notes at maturity has caused us to conclude there is a substantial doubt about our ability to 
continue as a going concern for purposes of the determination we are required to make in connection with our evaluation of our 
financial statements for 2016, as described below under “—Going Concern.”

We are working with a team of financial and legal advisors in evaluating all options available to us in executing on a 
comprehensive recapitalization plan.  These options include, but are not limited to, selling certain non-core assets (whose net proceeds 
would be used to repay a portion of outstanding Notes) as summarized under “Our Strategy—Sell Non-Core Assets and debt 
Recapitalization Plan,” new financings (including, equity-linked securities and equity offerings), an exchange offer with the 
Noteholders, with or without exit consents to amend the terms of the Indenture, use of cash on hand, and a combination of these 
options.  In connection with our recapitalization plan, we have initiated conversations with representatiwi6re working





46

including (i) a prohibition on our ability to incur additional indebtedness, (ii) restrictions on our ability to make restricted payments 
and (iii) restrictions on our ability to merge or consolidate with other companies or transfer all or substantially all of our assets.  In 
addition, the holders of the Series B preferred stock have the right to elect two members to our Board of Directors. A Voting Rights 
Triggering Event shall continue until (i) all 
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Class A Common Stock  

As of December 31, 2016, we had 4,166,991 shares of Class A common stock outstanding.

Class B Common Stock  

As of December 31, 2016, 2,340,353 shares of Class B common stock 
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Recent Developments

NASDAQ Delisting – OTCQX® Best Market Trading

On January 28, 2016, we received a written deficiency notice (the “Notice”) from the NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASDAQ”) 
advising us that the market value of our Class A Common Stock for the previous 30 consecutive business days had been below the 
minimum $15,000,000 required for continued listing on the NASDAQ Global Market pursuant to NASDAQ Listing Rule 5450 
(b)(3)(C) (the “Rule”).

Pursuant to NASDAQ Listing Rule 5810(c)(3)(D) (the “Listing Rule”), we are provided an initial grace period of 180 calendar 
days, or until July 26, 2016, to regain compliance with the Rule. The Notice further provided that NASDAQ would provide written 
confirmation stating that SBS had achieved compliance with the rule if at any time before July 26, 2016, the market value of its 
publicly held shares closed at $15,000,000 or more for a minimum of 10 consecutive business days.

We did not regain compliance with the rule by July 26, 2016 and received a letter from NASDAQ stating that unless we request 
an appeal, our Class A Common Stock will be scheduled for delisting at the opening of z6will
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future material effect 
on our financial 
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In the discounted cash flow projections, a period of ten years was determined to be an appropriate time horizon for the analysis. 
The yearly streams of cash flows are adjusted to present value using an after-tax discount rate calculated for the broadcast industry as 
of November 30 of each year. Additionally, it is necessary to project the terminal value at the end of the ten-year projection period. 
The terminal value represents the hypothetical value of the licenses at the end of a ten-year period. An estimated amount of taxes are 
deducted from the assumed terminal value, which accordingly is discounted to net present value. 

The key assumptions incorporated in the discounted cash flow model are market revenue projections, market revenue share 
projections, anticipated operating profit margins and risk adjusted discount rates. These assumptions vary based on the market size, 
type of broadcast signal, media competition and audience share. These assumptions primarily reflect industry norms for similar 
stations/broadcast signals, as well as historical performance and trends of the markets. In the preparation of the FCC broadcasting 
license appraisals, estimates and assumptions  sharethe  

type of broadcast signal,
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(a) In addition to the hypothetical greenfield approach, we also considered additional market valuation approaches in assessing 
whether any impairment may exist at the subject reporting unit.  Based on consideration of these factors, during the year ended 
December 31, 2016, we determined that there we 
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ability to utilize some or all of our deferred tax assets, primarily consisting of net operating losses, as well as other temporary 
differences between financial statement and tax reporting purposes.  We expect to continue to reserve for any increase in our deferred 
tax assets in the foreseeable future with the exception of certain deferred tax assets of a U.S. licensing entity and AMT credits in the 
U.S., which can be used to offset the indefinite lived intangible DTLs in the U.S.  If the realization of deferred tax assets in the future 
is considered more likely than not, an adjustment to the deferred tax assets would increase net income in the period such determination 
is made. In the event that actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods, we may need to 
adjust our valuation allowance, which could materially affect our financial position and results of operations. 

Valuation of Accounts Receivable 

We review accounts receivable to determine which accounts are doubtful of collection. In making the determination of the 
appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts, we consider our history of write-offs, relationships with our customers, age of the 
invoices and the overall creditworthiness of our customers. Changes in the creditworthiness of customers, general economic 
conditions and other factors may impact the level of future write-offs. 

Revenue Recognition 

We recognize broadcasting revenue as advertisements are aired on our stations, subject to meeting certain conditions such as 
persuasive evidence that an agreement exists, a fixed and determinable price, and reasonable assurance of collection. Our revenue is 
presented net of agency commissions.  Agency commissions, where applicable, are calculated based on a stated percentage applied to 
gross billing revenue. Advertisers remit the gross billing amount to the agency and the agency remits gross billings, less their 
commission, to us when the advertisement is not placed directly by the advertiser. Payments received in advance of being earned are 
recorded as customer advances. 

Contingencies and Litigations 

We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings and, as required, have accrued our estimate of the probable A0 Td (recogn74p7..8.8-oBT /FA ( )Tj (ourj -472.5710144 -11.4999864o7nruet)Tj ( )Tj pav ( )Tj (agen2lTd ( )Tj (our)j ( )Tj claimj ( )Tj (custTdjust)Tj ( )Tj (these)Tj ( )Tj (estuired,)Tj ( )Tjbes)Tj (Tj ( )Tj 05 op)Tj ( )Tj (received) Tm8e)T12(the)Tj 50.2640Tj (ultj ( )Tj (determi9127 0 Td ( )Tj43 0se(as)Tj ( )Tj n0 Td ( )Tj (earned)j (calculated)Tj ( )Tj up)Tj ( )Tj (posij ( )Tj (posialysi (creditworthiness.8-oBT 267.6e)Tj95 )Tj -493.46600342 potensiain)Tj ( )Tj j (and)8 0 Td ( )Tj (sum 0 Td ( )Tj (bi 0 Td ( )Tj43mb)Tj ( )Tj (determination )Tj (ce (and)Tj as)Tj ( )Tj n0 Td  ( )lectj (of)Tjn2lTd ( )settlj ( )Tj (n)Tj ( )Tre)Tgiej ( )Tj (custIease)Tj ( )TjTj ( )Tj (t9are)Tj (received) Tm8Wte)T17.6e231904 -11.49899864 TD (pri6ti82081Tj ( )Tj (are)Tj  Tde0eTd ( )Tj (o27.6e)Tj95 )Tj -493 ( )0 raaC4j (8 )Tjure  foreseeable 
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Control and Procedures 

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our periodic reports or 
filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the required 
time periods.. As of December 31, 2016, the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K, we carried out an 
evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the  theC9fficer
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PART III 

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

Information called for by Item 10 will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Information called for by Item 11 will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 

Information called for by Item 12 will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

Information called for by Item 13 will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 

Information called for by Item 14 will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by this 
reference. 



55

PART IV 

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 

1. Financial Statements 

The following financial statements have been filed as required by Item 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K: 

 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm; 

 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015; 

 Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015; 

 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015; 

 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015; and 

 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

2. Financial Statement Schedule 

The following financial statement schedule has been filed as required by Item 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K: 

 Financial Statement Schedule – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. 

3. Exhibits Required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K 

The information required by this Item is set forth on the exhibit index that follows the signature page of this annual report on 
Form 10-K. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Miami, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the 
“Company”) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, 
changes in stockholders' deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended.  In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial 
statements, we have also audited the consolidated financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index at Item 8.  These 
consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule 
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
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SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 

(In thousands, except share data) 
 December 31,   December 31,
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SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015 

(1) Organization and Nature of Business 

Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries owns 17 radio stations in the Los Angeles, New 
York, Puerto Rico, Chicago, Miami and San Francisco markets. In addition, we own and operate six television stations, which operate 
as one television operation, branded as “MegaTV.” We also have various MegaTV broadcasting outlets under affiliation or 
programming agreements. As part of our operating business, we produce live concerts and events and maintain multiple bilingual 
websites, including www.LaMusica.com, Mega.tv, various station websites, 

http://www.lamusica.com/
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(f) Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets 

Accounting for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be 
held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the 
asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by 
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset. 

(g) FCC Broadcasting Licenses 

Our indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of FCC broadcasting licenses. FCC broadcasting licenses are granted to stations for 
up to eight years under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (“the Act”). The Act requires the FCC to renew a broadcast license if: 
(i) it finds that the station has served the public interest, convenience and necessity; (ii) there have been no serious violations of either 
the Communications Act of 1934 or the FCC’s rules and regulations by the licensee; and (iii) there have geeen62n2 (reoh.,)Tj ( 416.28the73either)Tj 36.09396been
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Based on consideration of these factors, during the year ended December 31, 2016, we determined that there were no 
impairments for this subject reporting unit. Any significant change in these factors will result in a modification of the key 
assumptions, which may result in an additional impairment. 

(h) Goodwill 

Goodwill consists of the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible net assets 
acquired in business combinations. We test goodwill for impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level. We have determined 
that we have two reporting units, Radio and Television. We currently only have goodwill in our radio reporting unit. We have 
aggregated our operating components (radio stations) into a single radio reporting unit based upon the similarity of their economic 
characteristics. Our evaluation included consideration of factors, such as regulatory environment, business model, gross margins, 
nature of services and the process for delivering these services. 

The goodwill impairment test is a two-step test. Under the first step, the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its 
carrying value (including goodwill). If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an indication of goodwill 
impairment exists for the reporting unit and the enterprise must perform step two of the impairment test (measurement). If the fair 
value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, step two does not need to be performed. Under step two, an impairment loss is 
recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The 
implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price 
allocation. The residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the 
reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, 
step two does 
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related to simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, which we have applied retrospectively.  This new standard requires that 
debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying 
amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts, and not recorded as separate assets. As a result of the adoption of this 
accounting standard, we have reclassified $4.5 million, previously included under the non-current asset caption deferred financing 
costs, net of accumulated amortization, to the non-current liability caption, 12.5% seniorto
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(o) Contingent Liabilities 

Accounting standards require that an estimated loss from a loss contingency shall be accrued when information available prior 
to the issuance of the financial statements indicate that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred at 
the date of the financial statements and when the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Accounting for contingencies such 
as legal and income tax matters requires us to use our judgment. We believe that our accruals for these matters are adequate. 

(p) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the allowance for doubtful accounts, the 
realization of deferred tax assets, the useful lives and future cash flows used for testing the recoverability of property and equipment, 
the recoverability of FCC broadcasting licenses, goodwill and other intangible assets, the fair value of Level 2 and Level 3 financial 
instruments, production tax credits, contingencies and litigation. These estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best 
judgments. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors, 
including the current economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management 
adjusts such estimates and assumptions as facts and circumstances dictate. Illiquid credit markets, volatile equity markets and 
reductions in advertising spending have combined to increase the uncertainty inherent in such estimates and assumptions. Actual 
results could differ from these estimates. 

(q) Concentration of Business and Credit Risks 

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of risk include primarily cash, trade receivables and financial 
instruments used in hedging activities (see notes 2(w) and 7). We place our cash with highly rated credit institutions. Although we try 
to limit the amount of credit exposure with any one financial institution, we do in the normal course of business maintain cash 
balances in excess of federally insured limits. 

Our operations are conducted in several markets across the United States, including Puerto Rico. Our New York, Los Angeles, 
and Miami markets accounted for more than 60% of net for for  the circumstancesj (tha10 Td ( )Tj -50j (th0991.5 )Tj nderDico D ( )r ( )Tj (for)Tj y30 Td ( )Tj D)Tj ( )Tr0 Tj ( )Tj (th ( 1dD)Tj ( )Tr0 Tj)Tj (markek Tj ( )Tj (financi97803 0 1 TD83und2Tj (in)Tj ( )Tj (and)9.1786 0 j 50.82500076 030.0089924stimates)Tj 125.234spinh-515.14001465uding)Tj ( )Tj (j 21.37698364arg( )Tj (7).)Tu ( )r ( 1( )0)Tj 81j ( )Tj (increcash)Tj 20.2mit3 cm  0  50.825died) 0 Td ( )Tj (c99 omer1 0 TD ( )Tj (have)Tj ( )T )Tj (7).)Tu ( )r ( ( )Tj (cash)Tj 20.26mates.j ( )Tj 69 TD ( )T( )Tj (is)Tj ( 99 rf)Tj ( )4TD81.49900055 TD (realithu)Tj ( ). Td 82j (legal)Tj ( )Tpinh-97.983041accruals)Tj ( )Tj (forj ( )Tj (business)Tj ( )Tj (maij -409.69198608 Tj ( )Tj (financi9780 (cash)Tj 20.26898e)Tj1)Tj9h(Tj ( )Tj (the)T (bal)Tj 5uclude)Tj ( )Tj (910lude1l- (business)Tj ( )Tj (mawE61d987.)Tu ( )r ( ( )Tj Tj y30 Td ( )Tj D8 )Tj (States,)Tj (524 0 Td ( )T(financi970055Tj (048h)Tj ( )Tj (masaami;4 0 Td ( )Thow)Tj contingent)Tj8 Tj ( )Tj (financi9780 (casanaly ( )Tj  48.60 )T2estimates)Tj 70786 0 j 5egal)Tj ( )Tpinh-97.( ) ( ) )Tj (Our)Tj befTd ( )T72.2Tj013nderDico D ( )rext( )Tj (to))Tj (masubts,)t928 0 Td ( )Tj(financi9780 (cask,)Tj ( )Tj ( )Tj (do)Tj (  0 TD ( )Tj  78.84 0 1 24.5 63.4949 )Tj 6ffer)Tj 24.7061199799 0 Tdincluding
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The following is a reconciliation of the shares used in the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the years ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands, except per share data): 

 2016   2015  
Basic weighted average shares outstanding $ 7,267  $ 7,267 

Effect of dilutive equity instruments  —   — 
Dilutive weighted average shares outstanding $ 7,267  $ 7,267 

Options to purchase shares of common stock and other
     stock-based awards outstanding which are not included
     in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because
     their impact is anti-dilutive  389   95  

 
(s) Fair Value Measurement 

We determine the fair value of assets and liabilities using a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant 
assumptions developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity, and the reporting entity’s own 
assumptions about market participant assumptions developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date, essentially an exit price (see note 18). The levels of the fair value hierarchy are: 

 Level 1: inputs are quoted prices, unadjusted, in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the 
ability to access at the measurement date. 

 Level 2: inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
or indirectly. A Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

 Level 3: inputs are unobservable and reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. 

(t) Share-Based Compensation Expense 

We account for our share-based compensation expense based on the estimated grant date fair value method using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. For these awards, we have recognized compensation expense using a straight-line amortization method 
(prorated). Share-based compensation expense is based on awards that are ultimately expected to vest. Share-based compensation for 
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were reduced for estimated forfeitures. When estimating forfeitures, we consider 
voluntary termination behaviors, as well as trends of actual option forfeitures. 

(u) Leasing (Operating Leases) 

We recognize rent expense for operating leases with periods of free rent (including construction periods), step rent provisions 
and escalation clauses on a l option 2Tj 68ased 6b04an  asset  with 
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(w) Derivative Instrument 

We only enter into derivative contracts to hedge against the potential impact of increases in 
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change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash 
equivalents. This update is effective on a retrospective basis for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017 with 
early adoption permitted.  We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, that these new standards will have on our consolidated 
financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718).  This new standard’s 
objective is to simplify certain aspects of the accounting for share-based payment award transactions, including (i) income tax 
consequences, (ii) classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and (iii) classification on the statement of cash flows. This 
update is effective on a prospective, retrospective, and modified retrospective basis for annual and interim periods beginning after 
December 15, 2016 with early adoption permitted.  The Company adopted this accounting standard update, effective January 1, 2017, 
and determined that there would not be a material impact on our consolidated financial statements as the Company does not have any 
off balance sheet NOLs to recognize upon adoption and continues to maintain a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842).  This new standard requires organizations that lease 
assets to recognize on the balance sheet the lease assets and lease liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases and 
disclose key information about the leasing agreements.  Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification 
affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement.  The new guidance is effective for financial statements issued for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years.  Early adoption is permitted as of the 
beginning of an interim or annual reporting period and must be adopted using a modified retrospective approach for leases that exist or 
are entered into after the beginning of the earliest comparative period in the financial statements.  We are currently evaluating the 
impact that this new standard will have on our financial position and related disclosures and expect the impact on our assets and 
liabilities will be material due to the addition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; however the impact cannot currently be 
quantified.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Accounting for Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement.  
The new guidance changes how entities measure equity investments and present changes in the fair value of financial liabilities. The 
new guidance requires entities to measure equity investments that do not result in consolidation and are not accounted under the equity 
method at fair value and recognize any changes in fair value in net income unless the investments qualify for the new practicality 
exception.  A practicality exception will apply to those equity investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value and do 
not qualify for the practical expedient to estimate fair value and as such these investments may be measured at cost.  The new 
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. We are 
currently evaluating the impact, if any; however, we do not expect this update to have a material impact on our financial position and 
results of operations.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).  This new standard 
provides guidance for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of revenue resulting from contracts with customers and will 
supersu4$1a (afg 599292 TD (currently)Tj96 0 Td (as)T7id295395( )T0.726 0( )Tj s)Tj 8.33001709j (disclosure)Tj7A87si-70p( )Tj (from)ment   ing   fiGAAPf (This)Tj ( )Tj j (2016,)Tj ( )ulhe FA5B issued ASU ourkey  from the  firs0144 0 Td ( )Twithin tomers    Leases(revenue)Tj ( )Tj (resulting)TP(m ( )Terating5( )2)( )4  fiBonus745 122 cm BT 1 0 0 -1 05( )TguT1614 Tm (In)Tj ( )Tj (15 )Tj (during)(Purs24.5to)Tsificat98007200745 0 (to)Tj
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(4) Asset Held for Sale

During 2016, the Company entered into listing agreements with brokers to sell two buildings and related improvements in New 
York City and Los Angeles. The two properties have been reclassified from land, building and building improvements, as well as 
furniture and fixtures to assets held for sale as these assets were approved for immediate sale in their present condition, are expected t 
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For each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we reclassified from other comprehensive income to interest expense 
$0.2 and $0.3 million, respectively.  During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we recognized in other comprehensive 
income (loss), net of taxes- an unrealized gain on derivative instrument of $0.2 million.  

(8) Property and Equipment, Net 

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 

  2016   2015   Estimated
useful lives

Land $ 6,456  $ 7,306  —
Building and building improvements  22,161   36,721  7–20 years
Tower and antenna systems  5,986   5,978  10 years
Studio and technical equipment l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l 0 12.2489996 l h f* Q q -1 -1 m 238.80000305 -1 l 238.80000305 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (Studio)Tj ( )Tj (and)Tj ( )Tj (technical)Tj 81.64499664 0 Td ( ).g 237.800003m 237.80000305 0 l 237.8000030al 
 

  0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 1 g 311.3500061 0 m 361.80001831 0 l 361.80001831 12.2489996 l 311.3500061 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 311.3500061 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 22.20000076 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (36,721)Tj ET Q Q q 1 g 361.79998779 0 m 365.8999939 0 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l 361.79998779 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 -1 m 5.0999999 -1 l 5.09BA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0-1 13.24899 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 0.81681.7.79719-1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 1 g 365.8999939 0 m 373.3999939 0 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 365.8999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 8.5 -1 l 8.5 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0Furniture1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm fixture0 l 432.6000061 12.2489996 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 373.3999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 60.20000076 -1 l 60.20000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 7.42500019 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (7)Tj (–)Tj (20)Tj ( )Tj (years)Tj ET Q Q Q q 1 0 0 1 0 43.89599991 cm q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 0 0 m 237.80000305 0 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l 0 12.2489996 l h f* Q q -1 -1 m 238.80000305 -1 l 238.80000305 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /F 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 4,819 (antenna)Tj ( )Tj (systems)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 237.80000305 0 m 243.55000305 0 l 243.55000305 12.2489996 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 237.80000305 0 cm -1 -1 m 6.75 -1 l 6.75 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 243.55000305 0 m 294 0 l 294 12.2489996 l 243.55000305 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 243.55000305 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (5,986)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 294 0 m 298.1000061 0 l 298.1000061 12.2489996 l 294 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 294 0 cm -1 -51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 7 n q 1 0 Q  0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 298.1 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 4,94  0 1 0 0.Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 311.3500061 0 m 361.80001831 0 l 361.80001831 12.2489996 l 311.3500061 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 311.3500061 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (5,978)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 361.79998779 0 m 365.8999939 0 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l 361.79998779 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 -1 m 5.0999999 -1 l 5.0999999 13.q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 -1 m 5.0999999 -1 l 5.09BA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0-1 13.24899 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 0.8180.69979774117647 0.98823529 rg 365.8999939 0 m 373.3999939 0 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 365.8999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 8.5 -1 l 8.5 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA Transmitt 0 9.33600044647 0.98823529 rg 373.3999939 0 m 432.6000061 0 l 432.6000061 12.2489996 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 373.3999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 60.20000076 -1 l 60.20000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 12.4252489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n 0 m 237.80000305 0 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l 0 12.2489996 l h f* Q q -1 -1 m 238.80000305 -1 l 238.80000305 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /F 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 9,101176472 0.941176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 237.80000305 0 m 243.55000305 0 l 243.55000305 12.2489996 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 237.80000305 0 cm -1 -1 m 6.75 -1 l 6.75 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 T0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (Studio)Tj ( )Tj (and)Tj ( )Tj (technical)Tj 81.64499664 0 Td ( ).g 237.800003m 237.80000305 0 l 237.8000030al 
 

  0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 1 g 311.3500061 0 m 361.80001831 0 l 361.80001831 12.2489996 l 311.3500061 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 311.3500061 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 22.20000076 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (36,721)Tj ET Q Q q 1 g 361.79998779 0 m 365.8999939 0 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l 361.79998779 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 -1 m 5 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 0.81921.81 1 29-1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 1 g 365.8999939 0 m 373.3999939 0 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 365.8999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 8.5 -1 l 8.5 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0Leaseholj 26.37700653 Q q 0.81176472 0.9411761 12.2489996 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 373.3999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 60.20000076 -1 l 60.20000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 7.42500019 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (7)Tj (–)Tj (20)Tj ( )Tj (years)Tj ET Q Q Q q 1 0 0 1 0 43.89599991 cm q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 0 0 m 237.80000305 0 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l 0 12.2489996 l h f* Q q -1 -1 m 238.80000305 -1 l 238.80000305 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /F 13.2489996 l 1176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 298.1 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 2,781 (antenna)Tj ( )Tj (systems)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 237.80000305 0 m 243.55000305 0 l 243.55000305 12.2489996 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 237.80000305 0 cm -1 -1 m 6.75 -1 l 6.75 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 243.55000305 0 m 294 0 l 294 12.2489996 l 243.55000305 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 243.55000305 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (5,986)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 294 0 m 298.1000061 0 l 298.1000061 12.2489996 l 294 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 294 0 cm -1 -51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 7 n q 1 0 Q  0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 298.1 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 2,772Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 305.6000061 0.25 m 311.3500061 0.25 l 311.3500061 311.3500061 12.2489996 l 305.6000061 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 305.6000061 0 cm -1 -1 m 6.75 -1 l 6.75 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (  0 1 0 0.Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 311.3500061 0 m 361.80001831 0 l 361.80001831 12.2489996 l 311.3500061 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 311.3500061 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (5,978)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 361.79998779 0 m 365.8999939 0 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l 361.79998779 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 -1 m 5.0999999 -1 l 5.0999999 13.q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 -1 m 5.0999999 -1 l 5.09BA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 1-1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 112.2145 -884117647 0.98823529 rg 365.8999939 0 m 373.3999939 0 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 365.8999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 8.5 -1 l 8.5 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA Comput 0 9.33600044647 0.9882352)Tj (the)Tj 14.0 Q q 0.81176472 0.94117software1 0 9 rg 373.3999939 0 m 432.6000061 0 l 432.6000061 12.2489996 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 373.3999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 60.20000076 -1 l 60.20000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 12.4252489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n 0 m 237.80000305 0 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l 0 12.2489996 l h f* Q q -1 -1 m 238.80000305 -1 l 238.80000305 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /F 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 9,362176472 0.941176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 237.80000305 0 m 243.55000305 0 l 243.55000305 12.2489996 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 237.80000305 0 cm -1 -1 m 6.75 -1 l 6.75 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 T0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (Studio)Tj ( )Tj (and)Tj ( )Tj (technical)Tj 81.64499664 0 Td ( ).g 237.800003m 237.80000305 0 l 237.8000030al 
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Studio and00305 0.25 m 294 0.25 l 294 12.4989996 l 243.55000305 12.4989996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 243.55000305 0 cm -1 -0.75 m 51.45000076 -0.75 l 51.45000076 13.4989996 l -1 13.4989996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 1 cm BT /FA89996 l -1 13.248 (6,456)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 294 0 m 298.1000061 0 l 298.1000061 12.4989996 l 294 12.4989996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 294 0 cm -1 -1 m 5.0999999 -1 l 5.0999999 13.4989996 l -1 13.4989996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 1 cm BT /cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /6472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 298.1000061 0 m 305.6000061 0 l 305.6000061 12.4989996 l 298.1000061 12.4989996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 298.1000061 0 cm -1 -1 m 8.5 -1 l 8.5 13.4989996 l -1 13.4989996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 1 cm BT /FAAABA 101 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 102,050176472 0.94117647 7 0.98823529 rg 305.6000061 0 m 311.3500061 0 l 12.4989996 l 305.6000061 12.4989996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 305.6000061 0 cm -1 -0.75 m 6.75 -0.75 l 6.75 13.4989996 l -1 13.4989996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 1 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ($)Tj ET Q Q q 0. 1 0 rg 311.3500061 0 m 361.80001831 0 l 361.80001831 12.4989996 l 311.3500061 12.4989996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 311.3500061 0 cm -1 -0.75 m 51.45000076 -0.75 l 51.45000076 13.4989996 l -1 13.4989996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 1 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.2000W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 29 0 m 365.8999939 0 l 365.8999939 12.4989996 l 361.79998779 12.4989996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 l 238.80000305 13.4989996 l -1 13.4989996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 1 cm BT /FAA9 BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0   1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 1142.13298.4351 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 1 g 365.8999939 0 m 373.3999939 0 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 365.8999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 8.5 -1 l 8.5 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0Lesj ( )Tj (taxaccumul2 l h W 36.814025preciati)Tj -5 0.9411761 12.2489996 l 373.3999939 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 373.3999939 0 cm -1 -1 m 60.20000076 -1 l 60.20000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 7.42500019 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (7)Tj (–)Tj (20)Tj ( )Tj (years)Tj ET Q Q Q q 1 0 0 1 0 43.89599991 cm q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 0 0 m 237.80000305 0 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l 0 12.2489996 l h f* Q q -1 -1 m 238.80000305 -1 l 238.80000305 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /F 13.2m 0 g (7)Tj (–)Tj (20)Tj ( )Tj (years)Tj ET Q 15.8m BT 84 Q q 1 0 0 1 0 43.89(61,735 BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.336000442 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 237.80000305 0 m 243.55000305 0 l 243.55000305 12.2489996 l 237.80000305 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 237.80000305 0 cm -1 -1 m 6.75 -1 l 6.75 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm B) /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 243.55000305 0 m 294 0 l 294 12.2489996 l 243.55000305 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 243.55000305 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (5,986)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 294 0 m 298.1000061 0 l 298.1000061 12.2489996 l 294 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 294 0 cm -1 -51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FA7 0 0 7 n 489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /F 13.2m 0 g (7)Tj (–)Tj (20)Tj ( )Tj (years)Tj ET Q 15.8m BT 84 Q q 1 0 0 1 0 43.89(71,590 BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 7 0.98823529 rg 305.6000061 0 m 311.3500061 0 l 311.3500061 12.2489996 l 305.6000061 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 305.6000061 0 cm -1 -1 m 6.75 -1 l 6.75 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cl -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm B) /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ( )Tj rg 311.3500061 0 m 361.80001831 0 l 361.80001831 12.2489996 l 311.3500061 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 311.3500061 0 cm -1 -1 m 51.45000076 -1 l 51.45000076 13.2489996 l -1 13.2489996 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 27.20000076 9.33600044 Tm 0 g (5,978)Tj ET Q Q q 0.81176472 0.94117647 0.98823529 rg 361.79998779 0 m 365.8999939 0 l 365.8999939 12.2489996 l 361.79998779 12.2489996 l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 -1 m 5.0999999 -1 l 5.09l h f* Q q 1 0 0 1 361.79998779 0 cm -1 -1 m  BT /FAA9 BT /FAAABA 10 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0   1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 1154.386 1241 0 0 -1 0 9.33600044 Tm 0 g ((8))Tj 24.5 0 Td 8.5 20.14800072 l -1 20.14800072 l h W n q 1 0 0 1 0 0.75 cm BT /FAAABA 8 Tf 1 0 0 -1 0 12.06799984 Tm 0 g ( )Tj ET Q Q q 1 g 373.3999939 0 m 432.6000061 0 l 432.6000061 19. and EstimatedStudio and technical
Studio and
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each interest payment date. Further, beginning on the interest payment date occurring on April 15, 2013, additional interest will be 
payable at a rate of 2.00% per annum (the “Additional Interest”) on (i) the original principal amount of the Notes plus (ii) any amount 
of Additional Interest payable but unpaid in any prior interest period, to be paid in cash, at our election, (x) on the applicable interest 
payment date or (y) on the earliest of the maturity date of the Notes, any acceleration of the Notes and any redemption of the Notes; 
provided that no Additional Interest will be payable on any interest payment date if, for the applicable fiscal period, either (a) we 
record positive consolidated station operating income for our television segment or (b) our secured leverage ratio on a consolidated 
basis is less than 4.75 to 1.00. 

The Additional Interest applicable fiscal periods were as follows:

(1) Six-months ended December 31, 2012 or as of December 31, 2012

(2) Last twelve months ended June 30, 2013 or as of June 30, 2013

(3) Last twelve months ended December 31, 2013 or as of December 31, 2013 

(4) Last twelve months ended June 30, 2014 or as of June 30, 2014

(5) Last twelve months ended December 31, 2014 or as of December 31, 2014 

(6) Last twelve months ended June 30, 2015 or as of June 30, 2015

(7) Last twelve months ended December 31, 2015 or as of December 31, 2015 

(8) Last twelve months ended June 30, 2016 or as of June 30, 2016

(9) Last twelve months ended December 31, 2016 or as of December 31, 2016 

Although for the Additional Interest applicable periods (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8) and (9) our secured leverage ratio was 
greater than 4.75 to 1.00, we recorded positive consolidated station operating income for our television segment for those respective 
periods (as defined in the Indenture). The final applicable period ended December 31, 2016 and the Company did not incur any 
Additional Interest.  

(b) Collateral and Ranking 

The Notes and the guarantees are secured on a first-priority basis by a security interest in certain of the Company’s and the 
guarantors’ existing and future tangible and intangible assets (other than Excluded Assets (as defined in the Indenture)), which 
constitutes substantially all of the Company’s assets. The Notes and the guarantees are structurally subordinated to the obligations of 
our non-guarantor subsidiaries. The Notes and guarantees are senior to all of the Company’s and the guarantors’ existing and future 
unsecured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the collateral. 

The Indenture permits us, under specified circumstances, to incur additional debt; however, the occurrence and continuance of 
the Voting Rights Triggering Event (as defined in note 12 to the audited consolidated financial statements) currently prevents us from 
incurring any such additional debt. 

The Notes are senior secured obligations of the Company that rank equally with all of our existing and future senior 
indebtedness and senior to all of our existing and future subordinated indebtedness. Subject to certain exceptions, the Notes are fully 
and unconditionally guaranteed by each of our existing wholly owned domestic subsidiaries (which excludes (i) our existing and 
future subsidiaries formed in Puerto Rico (the “Puerto Rican Subsidiaries”), (ii) our future subsidiaries formed under the laws of 
foreign jurisdictions and (iii) our existing and future subsidiaries, whether domestic or foreign, of the Puerto Rican Subsidiaries or 
foreign subsidiaries) and our other domestic subsidiaries that guarantee certain of our other debt. The Notes and guarantees are 
structurally subordinated to all existing and future liabilities (including trade payables) of our nonguarantor subsidiaries. 

(c) Covenants and Other Matters 

The Indenture governing the Notes contains covenants that, among other things, limit our ability and the ability of the 
guarantors to: 

 incur or guarantee additional indebtedness; 

 pay dividends and mak343 -11.4990069lj ( )Tj (contains)Tj 175.373ir6/FA745payables) of 
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 engage in sale-lease back transactions; 

 enter 
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interest at a floating rate equal to one-month LIBOR plus 125 basis points on the Promissory Note. The interest rate swap amortization 
schedule was identical to the Promissory Note amortization schedule and expired on January 4, 2017.   

(12) 10 3/4% Series A and B Cumulative Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock 

On October 30, 2003, we partially financed the purchase of a radio station with proceeds from the sale, through a private 
placement, of 75,000 shares of our 10 3/4% Series A cumulative exchangeable redeemable preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 
with a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share (the “Series A preferred stock”), without a specified maturity date. The gross 
proceeds from the issuance of the Series A preferred stock amounted to $75.0 million. 

On February 18, 2004, we commenced an offer to exchange registered shares of our 10 3/4% Series B cumulative exchangeable 
redeemable preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share and liquidation preference of $1,000 per share for any and all shares of our 
outstanding unregistered Series A preferred stock. On April 5, 2004, we completed the exchange offer and exchanged 76,702 shares of 
our Series B preferred stock for all of our then outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock. 

Holders of the Series B preferred stock have customary protective provisions. The Certificate of Designations contains 
covenants that, among other things, limit our ability to:  (i) pay dividends, purchase junior securities and make restricted investments 
other restricted payments; (ii) incur indebtedness, including refinancing indebtedness; (iii) merge or consolidate with other companies 
or transfer all or substantially all of our assets; and (iv) engage in transactions with affiliates. Upon a change of control, we will be 
required to make an offer to purchase these shares at a price of 101% of the aggregate liquidation preference of these shares plus 
accumulated and unpaid dividends to, but excluding the purchase date.  

We had the option to redeem all or some of the registered Series B preferred stock for cash on or after October 15, 2009 at 
103.583%, October 15, 2010 at 101.792% and October 15, 2011 and thereafter at 100%, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends to the 
redemption date. On October 15, 2013, each holder of Series B preferred stock had the right to request that we repurchase (subject to 
the legal availability of funds under Delaware General Corporate Law) all or a portion of such holder’s shares of Series B preferred 
stock at a purchase price equal to 100% of the liquidation preference of such shares, plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends (as 
described in more detail below) on those shares to the date of repurchase. Under the terms of our Series B preferred stock, we are 
required to pay dividends at a rate of 10 3/4% per year of the $1,000 liquidation preference per share of Series B preferred stock. From 
October 30, 2003 to October 15, 2008, we had the option to pay these dividends in either cash or additional shares of Series B 
preferred stock. During October 15, 2003 to October 30, 2008, we increased the carrying amount of the Series B preferred stock by 
approximately $17.3 million for stock dividends, which were accreted using the effective interest method. Since October 15, 2008, we 
have been required to pay the dividends on our Series B preferred stock in cash. 

On October 15, 2013, holders of shares of our Series B preferred stock requested that we repurchase 92,223 shares of Series B 
preferred stock for an aggregate repurchase price of $126.9 million, which included accumulated and unpaid dividends on these shares 
as of October 15, 2013. We did not have sufficient funds legally available to repurchase all of the Series B preferred stock for which 
we received requests and instead used the limited funds legally available to us to repurchase 1,800 shares for a purchase price of 
approximately $2.5 million, which included accrued and unpaid dividends. Consequently, a “Voting Rights Triggering Event” 
occurred (the “Voting Rights Triggering Event”). 

During the continuation of a Voting Rights Triggering Event, certain of the covenants summarized above become more 
restrictive by their terms including (i) a prohibition on our ability to incur additional indebtedness, (ii) restrictions on our ability to 
make restricted payments and (iii) restrictions on our ability to merge or consolidate with other companies or transfer all or 
substantially all of our assets. In addition, the holders of the Series B preferred stock have the right to elect two members to our Board 
of Directors.  At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2014, the holders of the Series B preferred stock nominated and elected Alan 
Miller and Gary Stone to serve as the Series B preferred stock directors who have remained on the board since then.

The Voting Rights Triggering Event shall continue until (i) all dividends in arrears shall have been paid in full and (ii) all other 
failures, breaches or defaults giving rise to such Voting Rights Triggering Event are remedied or waived by the holders of at least a 
majority of the shares of the then outstanding Series B preferred stock.  The terms of our Series B preferred stock require us, in the 
event of a change of control, to offer to repurchase all or a portion of a holder’s shares at an offer price in cash equal to 101% of the 
liquidation preference of the shares, plus an amount in cash equal to all accumulated and unpaid dividends on those shares up to but 
excluding the date of repurchase. We do not currently have sufficient funds legally available to be able to satisfy the conditions for 
terminating the Voting Rights Triggering Event or for repurchasing the shares in the event of a change of control. During the 
continuation of the Voting Rights Triggering Event, the Indenture governing our Notes prohibits us from paying dividends or from 
repurchasing the Series B preferred stock. 
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Quarterly Dividends 

Under the terms of our Series B preferred stock, the holders of the outstanding shares of the Series B preferred stock are entitled 
to 
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Other Share-Based Compensation

In February 2016, the Company issued options to purchase 75,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock to an 
individual as an inducement to his taking a position with the Company. The options vest over a three-year period and have a ten-year 
term commencing on their vesting dates.  If the employee is terminated without cause or resigns after a change in control, the options 
automatically vest. The grant was outside of the Company’s 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan in accordance the then 
applicable NASDAQ Stock Market rules. 

Accounting for Share-Based Compensation 

We recognize share-based compensation expense based on the estimated grant date fair value method using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model. For these awards, we have recognized compensation expense using a straight-line amortization method 
(prorated). Share-based compensation expense is based on awards that are ultimately expected to vest. Share-based compensation for 
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was reduced for estimated forfeitures. When estimating forfeitures, we consider 
voluntary termination behaviors, as well as trends of actual option forfeitures. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
share-based compensation totaled $655 thousand and $9 thousand, respectively. 

As of December 31, 2016, there was $0.2 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested stock-based 
compensation arrangements granted under all of our plans.  The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 
approximately 0.8 years.

Accounting standards require that cash flows resulting from excess tax benefits be classified as a part of cash flows from 
financing activities.  Excess tax benefits are realized tax benefits related to tax deductions for exercised options in excess of the 
deferred tax asset attributable to stock compensation costs for such options. 

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, no stock options were exercised; therefore, no cash payments were 
received.  In addition, during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, we did not recognize a tax benefit on our stock-based 
compensation expense due to our valuation allowance on substantially all of our deferred tax assets. 

Valuation Assumptions 

We calculated the fair value of each option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.  The per 
share weighted average fair value of the stock options granted to employees during 2016 was $2.63.  The following weighted average 
assumptions were used for each respective period: 
 

 2016   2015  
Expected term  7    4  
Dividends to common stockholders None   None  
Risk-free interest rate  1.45%    1.39%  
Expected volatility  115.39    97.96  

Our computation of expected volatility for the year ended December 31, 2016 was based on a combination of historical and 
market-based implied volatility from traded options on our stock. Our computation of expected term in 2016 was determined based on 
historical experience of similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedules and 
expectations of future employee behavior. The information provided above results from the behavior patterns of separate group (information)Tj 107. 0 0 1 296.5 0 cm -1 -0.75 m 58.09999847 -0.75 l 58.09999847 13.498990 0 .09999847 13.4985 0 cm -1 -0.75 mTj (and)Tj 119.97000122 0 Td ( )Tjj (due)Tj ( )Tj (to)Tj ( )Tj (our)Tj ( )Tj (valuation)Tj ( )Tj (all1 ( )Tj (above)Tj 24689 )Tj (a)Tj 19.sl.Tj   



78

Stock Options and Nonvested Shares Activity 

Stock options have only been granted to employees or directors. Our stock options have various vesting schedules and are 
subject to the employees’ continuing service. A summary of the status of our stock options, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and 
changes during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, is presented below (in thousands, except per share data and contractual 
life): 
 

             Weighted  
     Weighted       Average  
     Average   Aggregate   Remaining  
     Exercise   Intrinsic   Contractual  
 Shares   Price   Value   Life (Years)  
Outstanding at December 31, 2014  121   22.74         

Granted  25   6.48         

Exercised  —   —         

Forfeited  (18)   81.59         

Outstanding at December 31, 2015  
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At December 31, 2016, future minimum lease payments under such leases are as follows (in thousands): 
 

 Operating    
 leases    
Year ending December 31:      

2017  2,967   
2018  1,644   
2019  1,271   
2020  1,062   
2021  951   
Thereafter  5,475   

Total minimum lease payments $ 13,370   

Subsequent to year end, December 31, 2016, the company entered in to additional lease commitments of $8.9 million for the 
years ended December 31, 2017 through 2032.  The total minimum lease payments will increase by $8.3 million, from $13.4 million 
to $21.7 million, as $0.6 million of  previously disclosed 2017 future minimum lease payments will be cancelled as part of entering 
into a new agreement. 

In connection with an operating lease, we have a standby letter of credit of $0.1 million, which was required under the lease 
terms. 

Total rent expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted 
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The components of the provision for income tax (benefit) expense from continuing operations included in the consolidated 
statements of operations are as follows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 
 

 2016   2015  
Current:        

Federal $ 271  $ — 
State and local, net of federal income tax benefit  65   10 
Foreign  300   298 

  636   308 
        
Deferred:        

Federal  7,296   6,458 
State and local, net of federal income tax benefit  696   2,126 
Foreign  —   2,333 

  7,992   10,917 
Total income tax (benefit) expense, from continuing 
operations $ 8,628  $ 11,225  

 
For the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, approximately $3.1 million and $1.1 million of Puerto Rico net operating loss 

carry-forwards were utilized. For the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, $0.4 million and $0.8 million federal net operating loss 
carry-forwards were utilized.

The tax effect of temporary differences and carry-forwards that give rise to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows (in thousands): 
 

 2016   2015  
Deferred tax assets:        

Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards $ 116,227  $ 109,020 
Foreign net operating loss carryforwards  11,354   12,506 
FCC licenses  6,396   6,291 
Allowance for doubtful accounts  1,017   1,133 
Unearned revenue  373   333 
AMT credit  1,248   1,120 
Derivatives and hedging instruments  7   254 
Property and equipment  3,253   2,056 
Accrued foreign withholding  2,238   2,136 
Straight-line expense adjustments  —   31 
Accrued restructuring  —   11 
Production costs  11,123   11,535 
Stock-based compensation  345   1,649 
Intercompany expenses  4,830   3,624 
Accrued Vacation/Bonus/Payroll  950   1,067 
Other  1,676   1,620 

Total gross deferred tax assets  161,037   154,386 
Less valuation allowance  (158,081)  (151,273)

Net deferred tax assets  2,956   3,113 
Deferred tax liabilities:        

FCC licenses and goodwill  108,327   100,421 
Total gross deferred tax liabilities  108,327   100,421 
Net deferred tax liability $ 105,371  $ 97,308  

The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was an increase of $6.8 
million and an increase of $8.3 million, respectively. The valuation allowance at 2016 and 2015 was primarily related to domestic and 
foreign net operating loss carryforwards and future deductible amounts related to the excess tax basis over the book basis of certain 
FCC broadcasting licenses. In 2016, the overall increase in valuation allowance was primarily due to NOLs generated during the 
current year.  
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In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or 
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of 
future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the 
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. 
As of December 31, 2016, the valuation allowance is comprised of $134.1 million in the US and $24.0 million in Puerto Rico. If theand
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(16) Contingencies 

Local Tax Assessment 

The company has received an audit assessment (the “Assessment”) wherein it was proposed that the Company underpaid a local 
tax for the tax periods between June 1, 2005 and May 31, 2015 totaling $1,439,452 in underpaid tax, applicable interest and penalties.  
The Company disagrees with the assessment and related calculations and has developed a settlement strategy to discuss and pursue 
with the taxing jurisdiction with the hope of avoiding a lengthy litigation process. While we are uncertain as to whether the 
jurisdiction will accept this offer, an accrual of $391,000, based upon our current best estimate of probable loss, was charged to 
operations in the accompanying financial statements. However, if the settlement offer is not accepted by the jurisdiction, the amount 
of the ultimate loss to the Company, if any, may equal the entire amount of the Assessment sought by the taxing jurisdiction.   

(17) Litigation 

From time to time, we are involved in various routine legal and administrative proceedings and litigation incidental to the 
conduct of our business, such as contractual matters and employee-related matters. In recent years, we have been subject to 
administrative proceedings and tab3169 0 Td bit we
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The estimated fair values of our financial instruments are as follows (in millions): 
 
   December 31,  
   2016   2015  
 Fair Value  Carrying   Fair   Carrying   Fair  
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(19) Segment Data 

The following summary table presents separate financial data for each of our operating segments. The accounting applied to 
determine the segment information are generally the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting polices (see 
note 2(v)). We evaluate the performance of our operating segments based on separate financial data for each operating segment as 
provided below (in thousands): 
 

 Year Ended  
 December 31,  
 2016   2015  
Net revenue:        

Radio $ 129,544  $ 133,624 
Television  15,075   13,275 

Consolidated $ 144,619  $ 146,899 
Engineering and programming expenses:        

Radio $ 23,514  $ 23,101 
Television  7,598   7,660 

Consolidated $ 31,112  $ 30,761 
Selling, general and administrative expenses:        

Radio $ 49,418  $ 60,706 
Television  6,688   5,868 

Consolidated $ 56,106  $ 66,574 
Corporate expenses: $ 10,588  $ 10,462 
Depreciation and amortization:        

Radio $ 1,905  $ 1,813 
Television  2,378   2,621 
Corporate  409   368 

Consolidated $ 4,692  $ 4,802 
(Gain) loss on the disposal 
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 December 31,   December 31,  
 2016   2015  
Total Assets:        

Radio $ 391,817  $ 392,926 
Television  56,554   51,388 
Corporate  2,519   
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SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(In thousands)
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Signatures 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on April 19, 2017.
 

Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc.

By: /s/ Raúl Alarcón
Name: Raúl Alarcón
Title: Chief Executive Officer and President
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SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.

2006 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT

This STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of February 24, 2016 (the “Date of Grant”), is 
delivered by Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the “Company” or “SBS”), to you (the “Grantee”). Capitalized terms used herein but 
not defined herein have the meanings given to them in the Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation 
Plan.

RECITALS

A. The Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) attached hereto as Exhibit A 
provides for the grant of a stock options to purchase shares of Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of the Company 
(the “Common Stock”).

B. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) has decided to make a stock 
option grant, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement and the Plan to align the economic interests of Grantee 
with those of  (Company)Tj ( )Tj ((’f)Tj ( )Tj (2m,)Tj6t set f9ete
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11. Tax Consequences and Withholding. The exercise of the Options will result in taxable income to Grantee, subject to withholding, 
and Grantee (or Grantee’s legal representative in the event of death) shall be solely responsible for all tax consequences that result 
from the exercise of the Options, as well as any subsequent sale of the Shares received upon exercise of the Options.  Grantee (or 
Grantee’s legal representatives in the event of death) shall pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the 
Company to provide for the payment of, any federal, state, local or other taxes that the Company is required to withhold with respect 
to the exercise of the Options.

12. Applicable Law.  The validity, construction, interpretation and effect of this instrument shall be governed by and construed by and 
determined in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof.

13. Notice.  Any notice to the Company provided for in this instrument shall be addressed to the Company in care of the Chief 
Financial Officer (or his designee), at 7007 N.W. 77th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33166 and any notice to Grantee shall be addressed to 
such Grantee at the current address on the Company’s records, to such other address as Grantee may designate to the Company in 
writing.  Any notice shall be delivered by hand, sent by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above, 
registered and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



-4-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company
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SCHEDULE A

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.
2006 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION GRANT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the “Company”) has determined 
to grant to you (the “Grantee”) incentive stock options to purchase shares of common stock of the Company under the Spanish 
Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”). The terms of the grant are set forth in the Incentive 
Stock Option Grant Agreement (the “Grant”) provided to you. The following provides a summary of the key terms of the Grant; 
however,18.0470047 0 T77vi7998 0 Td  
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SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.

2006 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT

This STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT 
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Notwithstanding (i) through (iii) above or anything in this Agreement or the Plan to the contrary, at any time after the grant of 
Options, the Committee, in its sole and absolute discretion and subject to whatever terms and conditions it selects, may provide that 
Options may be exercised after the relevant extended period set forth above, but in no event later than the date that it would have 
expired under this Agreement.

5. Exercise Procedures.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Sections 2 and 3 above, Grantee may exercise part or all of the exercisable Options by giving the 
Company written notice (in person or by first class mail to the Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal executive office) 
of Grantee’s intent to exercise the Options in the manner provided in this Agreement, specifying the number of Shares as to which the 
Options are to be exercised and is accompanied by full payment therefor. The purchase price for any Shares purchased pursuant to the 
exercise of Options shall be paid in full upon such exercise in cash, by check or, at the discretion of the Committee and upon such 
terms and conditions as the Committee shall approve, by transferring previously owned Shares to the Company, having Shares 
withheld or exercising pursuant to a “cashless exercise” procedure, or any combination thereof.  Any Shares transferred to the 
Company as payment of the purchase price under such Options shall be valued at their Fair Market Value on the date of exercise of 
such Options.  
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10. Assignment and Transfers.  Except as the Committee may otherwise permit pursuant to the Plan, the rights and interests of Grantee 
under this Agreement may not be pledged, sold, assigned, encumbered, hypothecated to or otherwise transferred in favor of any party 
other than the Company or a Subsidiary except, in the event of the death of Grantee, by will or by the laws of descent and distribution.  
In the event of any attempt by Grantee to alienate, assign, pledge, hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of the Options or any right 
hereunder, except as provided for in this Agreement, or in the event of the levy or any attachment, execution or similar process upon 
the rights or interests hereby conferred, the Company may terminate the Options by notice to Grantee, and the Options and all rights 
hereunder shall thereupon become null and void.  The rights and protections of the Company hereunder shall extend to any successors 
or assigns of the Company and to the Company’s parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates.  This Agreement may be assigned by the 
Company without Grantee’s consent.

11. Tax Consequences and Withholding. The exercise of the Options will result in taxable income to Grantee, subject to withholding, 
and Grantee (or Grantee’s legal representative in the event of death) shall be solely responsible for all tax consequences that result 
from the exercise of the Options, as well as any subsequent sale of the Shares received upon exercise of the Options.  Grantee (or 
Grantee’s legal representatives in the event of death) shall pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the 
Company to provide for the payment of, any federal, state, local or other taxes that the Company is required to withhold with respect 
to the exercise of the Options.

12. Applicable Law.  The validity, construction, interpretation and effect of this instrument shall be governed by and construed by and 
determined in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof.

13. Notice.  Any notice to the Company provided for in this instrument shall be addressed to the Company in care of the Chief 
Financial Officer (or his designee), at 7007 N.W. 77th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33166 and any notice to Grantee shall be addressed to 
such Grantee at the current address on the Company’s records, to such other address as Grantee may designate to the Company in 
writing.  Any notice shall be delivered by hand, sent by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above, 
registered and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused its duly authorized officers to execute and attest this Agreement, and 
Grantee has executed this Agreement, effective as of the Date of Grant.

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.

By:   /s/ Raúl Alarcón
Name: Raúl Alarcón
Title: President, CEO & Chairman

I hereby accept the Options described in this Agreement, and I agree to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agreement. I 
hereby further agree that all the decisions and determinations of the Compensation Committee shall be final and binding.

Grantee: /s/ Joseph A. García
Address:On File
Date: As of February 24, 2016
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SCHEDULE A

SPANISH 
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(a) Subject to the provisions of 
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11. Tax Consequences and Withholding. The exercise of the Options will result in taxable income to Grantee, subject to withholding, 
and Grantee (or Grantee’s legal representative in the event of death) shall be solely responsible for all tax consequences that result 
from the exercise of the Options, as well as any subsequent sale of the Shares received upon exercise of the Options.  Grantee (or 
Grantee’s legal representatives in the event of death) shall pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the 
Company to provide for the payment of, any federal, state, local or other taxes that the Company is required to withhold with respect 
to the exercise of the Options.

12. Applicable Law.  The validity, construction, interpretation and effect of this instrument shall be governed by and construed by and 
determined in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof.

13. Notice.  Any notice to the Company provided for in this instrument shall be addressed to the Company in care of the Chief 
Financial Officer (or his designee), at 7007 N.W. 77th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33166 and any notice to Grantee shall be addressed to 
such Grantee at the current address on the Company’s records, to such other address as Grantee may designate to the Company in 
writing.  Any notice shall be delivered by hand, sent by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above, 
registered and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused its duly authorized officers to execute and attest this Agreement, and 
Grantee has executed this Agreement, effective as of the Date of Grant.

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.

By: /s/ Joseph A. García
Name:  Joseph A. García
Title: Sr. EVP & CFO

I hereby accept the Options described in this Agreement, and I agree to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agreement. I 
hereby further agree that all the decisions and determinations of the Compensation Committee shall be final and binding.

Grantee: /s/ Manuel E. Machado
Address:On File
Date: As of February 24, 2016
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SCHEDULE A

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.
2006 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION GRANT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the “Company”) has determined 
to grant to you (the “Grantee”) incentive stock options to purchase shares of common stock of the Company under the Spanish 
Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”). The terms of the grant are set forth in the Incentive 
Stock Option Grant Agreement (the “Grant”) provided to you. The following provides a summary of the key terms of the Grant; 
however, you should read the entire Grant, along with the terms of the Plan, to understand the Grant fully.

Grantee: Manuel E. Machado

Date of Grant: February9.336000000000000005n Q  0 5u. -1  0 1 15S.oG.024 m 81.36199951 10.71-

February9.336000000000000005n Q  0 5u. -1  0 1 15S.oG.024 m 81.36199951 10.71-

February9.336000000000000005n Q  0 5u. -1  0 1 15S.oG.024 m 81.36199951 10.71-
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(a) Subject to the provisions of Sections 2 and 3 above, Grantee may exercise part or all of the exercisable Options by giving the 
Company written notice (in person or by first class mail to the Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal executive office) 
of Grantee’s intent to exercise the Options in the manner provided in this Agreement, specifying the number of Shares as to which the 
Options are to be exercised and is accompanied by full payment therefor. The purchase price for any Shares purchased pursuant to the 
exercise of Options shall be paid in full upon such exercise in cash, by check or, at the discretion of the Committee and upon such 
terms and conditions as the Committee shall approve, by transferring previously owned Shares to the Company, having Shares 
withheld or exercising pursuant to a “cashless exercise” procedure, or any combination thereof.  Any Shares transferred to the 
Company as payment of the purchase price under such Options shall be valued at their Fair Market Value on the date of exercise of 
such Options.  If requested by the Committee, Grantee shall deliver the Agreement evidencing the Options to the Secretary of the 
Company who shall endorse thereon a notation of such exercise and return such Option Agreement to Grantee.  Not less than one 
hundred (100) Shares may be purchased at any time upon the exercise of Options unless the number of Shares so purchased 
constitutes the total number of Shares then purchasable under the Options or the Committee determines otherwise, in its sole 
discretion. The Committee may impose from time to time such limitations as it deems appropriate on the use of Shares of the 
Company to exercise the Option.

(b) The obligation of the Company to deliver Shares upon exercise of the Options shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules, 
and regulations and such approvals by governmental agencies as may be deemed appropriate by the Committee, including such 
actions as Company counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate to comply with relevant securities laws and regulations.

(c) All obligations of the Company under this Agreement shall be subject to the rights of the Company as set forth in the Plan to 
withhold amounts required to be withheld for any taxes, if applicable.  Subject to Committee approval, Grantee may elect to satisfy 
any such tax withholding obligation with respect to the Options by having Shares withheld up to an amount that does not exceed the 
minimum applicable withholding tax rate for federal (including FICA), state and local tax liabilities.

6. Change of Control.  The provisions of the Plan applicable to a Change in Control shall apply to the Options, and, in the event of a 
Change in Control, the Options shall automatically become fully exercisable so long as Grantee was serving as a director of the 
Company prior to the Change in Control.

7. Restrictions on Exercise.  Except as the Committee may otherwise permit pursuant to the Plan, only Grantee may exercise the 
Option during 



-3-

11. Tax Consequences and Withholding. The exercise of the Options will result in taxable income to Grantee, subject to withholding, 
and Grantee (or Grantee’s legal representative in the event of death) shall be solely responsible for all tax consequences that result 
from the exercise of the Options, as well as any subsequent sale of the Shares received upon exercise of the Options.  Grantee (or 
Grantee’s legal representatives in the event of death) shall pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the 
Company to provide for the payment of, any federal, state, local or other taxes that the Company is required to withhold with respect 
to the exercise of the Options.

12. Applicable Law.  The validity, construction, interpretation and effect of this instrument shall be governed by and construed by and 
determined in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof.

13. Notice.  Any notice to the Company provided for in this instrument shall be addressed to the Company in care of the Chief 
Financial Officer (or his designee), at 7007 N.W. 77th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33166 and any notice to Grantee shall be addressed to 
such Grantee at the current address on the Company’s records, to such other address as Grantee may designate to the Company in 
writing.  Any notice shall be delivered by hand, sent by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above, 
registered and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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SCHEDULE A

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.
2006 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION GRANT

The 



Exhibit 10.36

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.

2006 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT

This STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of February 24, 2016 (the “Date of Grant”), is 
delivered by Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the “Company” or “SBS”), to you (the “Grantee”). Capitalized terms used herein but 
not defined herein have the meanings given to them in the Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation 
Plan.

RECITALS

A. The Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) attached hereto as Exhibit A 
provides for the grant of a stock options to purchase shares of Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of the Company 
(the “Common Stock”).

B. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) has decided to make a stock 
option grant, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement and the Plan to align the economic interests of Grantee 
with those of the Company’s stockholders.

C. The Board has appointed the Committee to administer the Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows:

1. Grant of Options.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Plan, the Company hereby grants to 
Grantee stock options (the “Options”) to purchase the shares of Common Stock of the Company (“Shares”) at a specified exercise 
price per Share set forth on Schedule A. The Options shall become exercisable according to Section 2 below.

2. Exercisability of Options. The Options shall be exercisable in such installments and at such times as set forth on Schedule A, if 
Grantee is serving as a director on the applicable date.  To the extent not exercised, installments shall accumulate and may be 
exercised, in whole or in part, at any time after becoming exercisable, but not later than the date the Options expire.  The Committee 
may accelerate the exercisability of any or all-outstanding Options at any time for any reason.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any 
installment of the Options that is not exercisable prior to a Change in Control shall become exercisable on the date of such Change in 
Control and shall remain exercisable for the remainder of their term so long as Grantee is serving as a director immediately prior to the 
Change of Control.

3. Term of Options.  The Options shall be for such term as is specified in Schedule A, unless they are terminated at an earlier date 
pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or the Plan.

4. Exercise of Options After Termination of Service as a Director. The Options granted under this Agreement are exercisable by 
Grantee only while he is serving as a director of the Company, provided that any installment of the Options that is exercisable 
preceding Grantee’s termination of service as a director of the Company shall remain exercisable for the following period:

(i) If Grantee dies while serving as a director of the Company, or if his termination of service is due to disability, Grantee 
(or his designated beneficiary or personal representative, as applicable) may exercise the Options no later than twelve (12) 
months after such death or termination;

(ii) If Grantee’s termination of service as a director of the Company is for any reason other than those set forth in (i) 
above, Grantee may exercise the Options within three (3) months after such termination; or

(iii) If Grantee dies during a period described in (i) or (ii) above, his designated beneficiary may exercise such Options no 
later than the expiration of such extended period.

Notwithstanding (i) through (iii) above or anything in this Agreement or the Plan to the contrary, at any time after the grant of 
Options, the Committee, in its sole and absolute discretion and subject to whatever terms and conditions it selects, may provide that 
Options may be exercised after the relevant extended period set forth above, but in no event later than the date that it would have 
expired under this Agreement.





-3-

11. Tax Consequences and Withholding. The exercise of the Options will result in taxable income to Grantee, subject to withholding, 
and Grantee (or Grantee’s legal representative in the event of death) shall be solely responsible for all tax consequences that result 
from the exercise of the Options, as well as any subsequent sale of the Shares received upon exercise of the Options.  Grantee (or 
Grantee’s legal representatives in the event of death) shall pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the 
Company to provide for the payment of, any federal, state, local or other taxes that the Company is required to withhold with respect 
to the exercise of the Options.

12. Applicable Law.  The validity, construction, interpretation and effect of this instrument shall be governed by and construed by and 
determined in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof.

13. Notice.  Any notice to the Company provided for in this instrument shall be addressed to the Company in care of the Chief 
Financial Officer (or his designee), at 7007 N.W. 77th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33166 and any notice to Grantee shall be addressed to 
such Grantee at the current address on the Company’s records, to such other address as Grantee may designate to the Company in 
writing.  Any notice shall be delivered by hand, sent by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above, 
registered and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused its duly authorized officers to execute and attest this Agreement, and 
Grantee has executed this Agreement, effective as of the Date of Grant.

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.

By:   /s/ Joseph A. García
Name: Joseph A. García
Title: Sr. EVP & CFO

I hereby accept the Options described in this Agreement, and I agree to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agreement. I 
hereby further agreethahis 
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SCHEDULE A

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.
2006 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION GRANT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the “Company”) has determined 
to grant to you (the “Grantee”) incentive stock options to purchase shares of common stock of the Company under the Spanish 
Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”). The terms of the grant are set forth in the Incentive 
Stock Option Grant Agreement (the “Grant”) provided to you. The following provides a summary of the key terms of the Grant; 
however, you should read the entire Grant, along with the terms of the Plan, to understand the Grant fully.

Grantee: José A. Villamil

Date of Grant: February 24, 2016

Options Granted: 30,000

Option Price per share: $ 3.09

Total Cost to Exercise: $92,700

Exercisability Schedule: 15,000 on February 24, 2016

15,000 on May 15, 2017*

Term/Expiration Date: February 23, 2026 unless terminated earlier.

Transferability: Not transferable except in accordance with the Plan.

*Grantee must be serving as a director of the Company (as defined in the Plan) on the applicable date for the option to become 
exercisable.
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SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.

2006 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT

This STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of February 24, 2016 (the “Date of Grant”), is 
delivered by Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the “Company” or “SBS”), to you (the “Grantee”). Capitalized terms used herein but 
not defined herein have the meanings given to them in the Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation 
Plan.

RECITALS

A. The Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) attached hereto as Exhibit A 
provides for the grant of a stock options to purchase shares of Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of the Company 
(the “Common Stock”).

B. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) has decided to make a stock 
option grant, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement and the Plan to align the economic interests of Grantee 
with those of the Company’s stockholders.
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5. Exercise Procedures.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Sections 2 and 3 above, Grantee may
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11. Tax Consequences and Withholding. The exercise of the Options will result in taxable income to Grantee, subject to withholding, 
and Grantee (or Grantee’s legal representative in the event of death) shall be solely responsible for all tax consequences that result 
from the exercise of the Options, as    and  
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IN WITNESS 
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SCHEDULE A

SPANISH BROADCASTING SYSTEM, INC.
2006 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION GRANT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the “Company”) has determined 
to grant to you (the “Grantee”) incentive stock options to purchase shares of common stock of the Company under the Spanish 
Broadcasting System, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”). The terms of the grant are set forth in the Incentive 
Stock Option Grant Agreement (the “Grant”) provided to you. The following provides a summary of the key terms of the Grant; 
however, you should read the entire Grant, along with the terms of the Plan, to understand the Grant fully.

Grantee: Mitchell A. Yelen

Date of Grant: February 24, 2016

Options Granted: 30,000

Option Price per share: $ 3.09

Total Cost to Exercise: $92,700
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List of Subsidiaries of Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc.

Subsidiary name   State of incorporation
AIRE Radio Network LLC Delaware
Alarcon Holdings, Inc.   New York
Broadspan Music Holdings, Inc.   Delaware
Broadspan Music, Inc.   Delaware
Gabriel Productions, LLC   Delaware
Gabriel Series I, LLC   Delaware
JuJu Media, Inc.   New York
KLAX Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
KLEY Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
KPTI Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
KRZZ Licensing, LLC   Delaware
KSAH Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
KTBU Licensing, Inc.   Texas
KXOL Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
KZAB Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
KZBA Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
Mega Media Holdings, Inc.   Delaware
Megafilms, Inc.   Delaware
Megaflix, Inc.   Delaware
Megaholdings, Inc.   Delaware
Megapics, Inc.   Delaware
SBS Bay Area, LLC   Delaware
SBS Funding, Inc.   Delaware
SBS Miami Broadcast Center, Inc.   Delaware
SBS of Greater New York, Inc.   New York
SBS Promotions, Inc.   New York
Spanish Broadcasting System Finance Corporation   Delaware
Spanish Broadcasting System Holding Company, Inc.   Puerto Rico
Spanish Broadcasting System Inc. (NJ)   New Jersey
Spanish Broadcasting System Network, Inc.   New York
Spanish Broadcasting System of California, Inc.   California
Spanish Broadcasting System of Florida, Inc.   Florida
Spanish Broadcasting System of Greater Miami, Inc.   Delaware
Spanish Broadcasting System of Illinois, Inc.   Delaware
Spanish Broadcasting System of Puerto Rico, Inc.   Delaware
Spanish Broadcasting System of Puerto Rico, Inc.   Puerto Rico
Spanish Broadcasting System of San Antonio, Inc.   Delaware
Spanish Broadcasting System SouthWest, Inc.   Delaware
Spanish Broadcasting System-San Francisco, Inc.   Delaware
WRXD Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WCMQ Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WDEK Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WKIE Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WKIF Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WLEY Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WMEG Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WPAT Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WRMA Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WSBS Licensing Inc. (f/k/a WDLP Licensing, Inc.)   Delaware
WSKQ Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WXDJ Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
WZET Licensing, Inc.   Delaware
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-144286 on Form S-8 of Spanish Broadcasting 
System, Inc. of our report dated April 19, 2017 relating to the consolidated financial statements and schedule, appearing in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K.

  /s/ od ( )Tj (this)d ( )Tj (this)d ( )Tj (this)d ( )Tj (this)d (63D2t5nuaownanc 0 1 264ownanc 0 1 2 )Tj 4s90044 Tm 2 



Exhibit 31.1

Certification

I, Raúl Alarcón, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report 
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Certification

I, Joseph A. García, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 of Spanish 
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the ‘‘Company’’) on Form 10-K for the period ended 
December 31, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the ‘‘Report’’), I, Raúl Alarcón, as 
Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 
78m or 78o(d)); and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company.

/s/ Raúl Alarcón
Name:
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc. (the ‘‘Company’’) on Form 10-K for the period ended 
December 31, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the ‘‘Report’’), I, Joseph A. García, as 
Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President and Secretary of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as 
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 
78m or 78o(d)); and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company.

/s/ Joseph A. García
Name: Joseph A. García
Title: Chief Financial Officer, Chief Administrative Officer,

Senior Executive Vice President and Secretary

April 19, 2017


